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L

June 4, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Evident Change
(VC #164062), Madison, Wl, to continue providing Structured Decision Making® services utilized
to determine need for Division for Children, Youth, and Families assessments, family risk levels,
and any safety planning or court actions needed to support child safety and reduce child abuse
and neglect, by increasing the price limitation by $95,280 from $977,925 to $1,073,205 and by
extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective July 1, 2025, upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 10, 2019, item #14
and amended on June 30, 2021, item #29; and most recently amended on March 22, 2023, item
#15.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29570000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
DEPT, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD PROTECTION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102/500731
Contract for

Prog Svc
42105748 $258,000 $0 $258,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105748 $160,100 $0 $160,100

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105748 $22,700 $0 $22,700

2023 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105748 $212,125 $0 $212,125

Subtotal $652,925 $0 $652,925

05-95-42-421010-32200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES, CHILD
PROTECTION, BUREAU OF PROF & STRATEGIC DEV

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget
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2024 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105748 $125,000 $0 $125,000

2025 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105748 $200,000 $0 $200,000

2026 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
Various $0 $50,000 $50,000

2027 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
Various $0 $45,280 $45,280

Subtotal $325,00 $95,280 $420,280

Total $977,925 $95,280 $1,073,205

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source be identified as sole source. The Contractor developed the
Structured Decision Making® model and is the proprietary owner of the intellectual property rights,
title, and interest, including copyrights. The model was adopted by a number of states and
jurisdictions across the country. Other products were initially considered in 2018. The Structured
Decision Making® model was determined to be the most effective tool that offers a suite of
decision-support tools that promote safety and well-being for children and adults and is the only
evidence-informed model that includes all six (6) decision making tools. Additionally, the
Contractor was able to utilize existing NH data and compare it to the Department's assessment-
outcomes to demonstrate the tool's validity.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Contractor to continue implementing supports
in conjunction with the Department, including continuing to add the Structured Decision Making®
tools and services into the Comprehensive Child Welfare Information System. Supports to
implement Structured Decision Making® consist of various components including, but not limited
to, training and coaching of staff, training of trainers, case reviews, and software certification.
While working with families with whom child abuse and/or neglect have been alleged or identified,
the proprietary model assesses criteria for safety and risk, thus guiding decision-making at key
points.

The Department served 19,215 families through Intake in calendar year 2024, 9,500
families through assessments, and served 3,955 children through open child protection cases.
The Department anticipates sen/ing approximately the same number of families in State Fiscal
Years 2026 and 2027.

The Contractor will continue providing the six (6) sets of evidence-informed tools to guide
Department staff with numerous decision points for intake, assessment, and family services,
including: whether a referral to the Department's Division for Children, Youth and Families should
be accepted for assessment; the required assessment response time; if children in the family are
safe or need intervention; the risk level of the family, which guides decisions regarding referrals
upon assessment closure; when to reunify children who have been placed; and when to close an
open in-home case.

Additionally, the Structured Decision Making® Risk Assessment tool estimates the
likelihood of future child protection system involvement. The In-home Risk Review tool helps
determine when risk is reduced sufficiently to support closing an in-home case. The Contractor
also worked with NH Child Protection to build risk tools supported by NH specific data and tested
each of the six (6) tools developed to ensure an increase in consistency.
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The Department will continue to monitor Contractor services to ensure contract
deliverables and deliverable due dates are met. including ensuring Structured Decision Making®
tools are finalized and incorporated into the Department's new Comprehensive Child Welfare
Information System by June 30, 2026, and that child protection staff receive training.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to continue providing Structured Decision Making® services that support the Department's ability
to identify children who are at high risk of abuse and neglect and to mitigate the risk of repeat
maltreatment from caregivers and ultimately reduce child abuse and neglect fatalities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing#: 93.658 FAIN #2401NHFOST

Respectfully submitted.

For:

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
New Hampshire

27 Hazen Drive | Concord, NH 103301

Fax: (603) 271-1516 | TDD: (800) 753-2964

doit-nhrgo^

Denis Goulet, Commissioner

Mays, 2025

Lori A. Weaver, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology

(DolT) has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Evident Change,

as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-098C.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Structured Decision Making

services utilized to determine need for DCYF assessments, family risk levels, and any

safety planning or court actions needed to support child safety and reduce child

abuse and neglect.

The Total Price Limitation shall increase by $95,280 for a New Total Price Limitation
of $1,073,205, effective upon Governor and Council approval from July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'

submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd

DolT #2019-098C

cc: Ken Gagne, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative technologies today for New Hampshire's tomorrow."



Oocusign Envelope ID: 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-876F^6B5E12C97DC

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Structured Decision Making Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices ("State" or "Department") and Evident Change
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 10, 2019 (Item #14), as amended on June 30, 2021 (Item #29), and as most recently amended on
March 22, 2023 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,073,205

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3.1, to read:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices for completed and Department-approved Project
Deliverables in accordance with Exhibit B-T, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2, Price and Payment Schedule, by replacing it in its entirety with
Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

k.f.
Evident Change A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

S$-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03 Page 1 of 3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Govemor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date v^rritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/15/2025

Date

•OocuSigrwd by:

fWiu N06\a^
Noonan

Title: dcyf Director

Evident Change

5/14/2025

Date

■SIgnbd by;

Title: chief Legal & operating Officer

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoeoSignBd by:

5/15/2025 ,

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Evident Change A-S-1.2

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SOMNC-01-A03

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule

Table 1 - State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023

Deliverable Description
Deliverable

Due Date
Price

Amount Spent
as of 6/30/23

Intake tools Pre-lmplementation
IRR and Field Testing & final
tools

August 31, 2019 -
completed

$17,800 $17,800

Project start-up activities
September 30.
2019 - completed

$25,400 $25,400

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: policy review

October 31, 2019 -
completed

$17,600 $17,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: data collection

October 31, 2019 -

completed
$27,600 $27,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: decision-point
data reviews

December 31, 2019
- completed

$19,100 $19,100

Intake tools curriculum

development, training and
coaching

January 31, 2021 -
completed $32,205 $32,205

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning:
recommendation meeting

January 31, 2020 -
completed

$20,400 $20,400

Preliminary risk assessment
analysis

February 28, 2020 -
completed

$20,000 $20,000

Risk assessment validation

study
April 30, 2020 -
completed

$60,000 $60,000

Intake tools post-implementation
case review

May 30, 2022 -
completed

$28,500 $28,500

Tool customization {safety and
risk assessments)

May 30, 2021 -
completed

$39,550 $39,550

Tool customization (in-home risk
review and reunification risk

review assessments)

May 30, 2021 -
completed

$39,550 $39,550

Inter-rater Reliability Testing
(Assessment tools)

June 30, 2020 -
completed

$29,000 $29,000

Field test/tool finalization

(Assessment tools)

June 30, 2020 -

completed
$21,100 $21,100

Project management
June 30, 2023 -

completed
$12,000 $12,000

Inter-rater reliability testing
(Family Service tools)

August 31, 2020 -
completed

$29,000 $29,000

Field test/tool finalization

(Family Service tools)
October 31, 2020 -

completed
$21,100 $21,100

-InttUI

Evident Change

SS-202(>-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03

Exhibit B-1. Amendment #3

Page 1 of 4

Contractorlnitials ■

Date

5/14/2025
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule

Training curriculum
development

November 30, 2022
- completed

$66,400 .  $66,400

Project management
June 30, 2023 -
completed

$12,000 $12,000

Deliverables moved to Table 2.

State Fiscal Years 2024 and

2025:

• Intake case review

• Case review tool

development

• SDM certification.

(Costs increased. See Table 2
for deliverables and new costs.)

Not completed in
SFYs 2020, 2021,
2022, and 2023

$114,620 $0

Subtotal $652,925 $538,305
Unspent: $114,620

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Alje

Date

5/14/2025
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services ,

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule

Table 2 - State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025

Deliverable Description
Deliverable

Due Date
Price

Amount Spent
as of 7/1/25

Intake Case Review

(Deliverable from prior SFY)
June 30. 2024-
completed

$13,500 $13,500

Assessment & Family Services

Case Review Tool Development
(Deliverable from prior SFY)

June 30. 2024 -

completed $27,000
$27,000

Manual Updates June 30, 2024 $22,500 $22,500

Project Management 2024
June 30,2024-
completed

$12,000 $12,000

SDM Certification (5 tools) and
Pre-implementation testing
(Deliverable from prior SFY) June 30, 2024

$50,000

$45,000
$5,000 Unspent
as of 7/1/25 - not

available in

SFYs 2026 &

2027

Intake Training & Coaching June 30, 2025 $20,000 $0

Assessment and Family
Services Training for Trainers

June 30, 2025 $65,000 $0

Assessment and Family
Services Supen/isor Training/
Coaching Sessions

June 30, 2025
$50,000

(four sessions)
$0

Assessment & Family Services
Case Review

June 30, 2025 $50,000 $0

Project Management 2025 June 30, 2025 $15,000 $15,000

Subtotal $325,000
$135,000

Unspent as of
7/1/25:

$190,000

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03

Exhibit B-1. Amendment #3

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

5/14/2025
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3, Price and Payment Schedule

Table 3 - State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027 (July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2027)

Deliverable Description
Deliverable Due

Date
Price

Budget Amount
(7/1/25-6/30/27)

Curriculum Development March 30. 2026 $50,000 $50,000

SDM Certification (5 tools) June 30, 2026 $53,000 $53,000

Project Management year 1 June 30, 2026 $15,000 $15,000

Pre-implementation Testing
of the SDM Reunification

Assessment

June 30, 2026
$45,000 $45,000

Assessment and Family
Services Training for
Trainers

June 30, 2026
$68,900

.  $68,900

Assessment and Family
Sen/ices Supervisor Training/
Coaching Sessions

June 30, 2027
$53,000

$53,000

Intake, Assessment, &
Family Sen/ices Case
Review

June 30, 2027
$75,000

$75,000

Intake Training and Coaching June 30, 2027
$25,000

$25,000

Project Management year 2 June 30, 2027 $15,000 $15,000

Subtotal $399,900 $399,900

Table 1 (Unspent)
Rollover Funding

($114,620) ($114,620)

Table 2 (Unspent)
Rollover Funding

($190,000) ($190,000)

Adjusted Subtotal $95,280 $95,280

TOTAL COST (Tables 1-3) $1,073,205

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A03

Exhibit B-1. Amendment #3

Page 4 of 4

Contractor Initials

5/14/2025
Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanian. Secreiar>' of Slate of Ihe Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai EVIDENT CHANGE is a New

York Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Januar>' 25, 1993. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretarj' of Stale's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 182527

Certificate Number: 0007170219

SI

tu

o
dx,

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 28th day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanian

Sccreiarv of Slate
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EVIDENT
CHANGE
Inform Systems. Transform Lives.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Catherine Essiq. hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Board Secretary of Evident Change.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called
and held on March 21, 2022, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Mindv Rowland. CLOO

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Evident Change to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: April 29,2025

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Catherine Essig
Title: Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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EVIDENT
CHANGE
Inform Systems. Transform Lives.

RESOLUTION

By resolution of a 2/3 majority of the Board of Directors appointed pursuant to the bylaws of Evident

Change, the following was adopted and recorded in the minute books of said corporation on this the 21st day
of March, 2022, in accord with and pursuant to the charter and bylaws of said corporation, and is now in full

force and effect:

RESOLVED, that:

The Board of Directors confirms that it delegates the authority to negotiate and execute contracts to

certain active Executive Officers and Staff of the corporation.

The following Executive Officers and Staff of Evident Change are confirmed in their authority to engage in
legal and binding contractual arrangements on behalf of the corporation:

Katherine H. Park Angela Wolf

Chief Executive Officer Chief Program Officer

Mindy Rowland Toni Aleman

Chief Legal and Operations Officer Director of Human Resources

This resolution adds delegation to Mindy Rowland.

APPROVED, on behalf of the Evident Change Board of Directors:

37-3/ (

Board Secretary Date
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OO^WYY)

11/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PftOOUCER

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC
500 N Brand Boulevard, Suite 100
Glendale OA 91203

License#: 0D69293

NAME*^' Elena Ibarra
F.ii. 818.539.8671 Luc.noI: 818.539.8771

ADDRESS: Elena lbarra@ajq.com

tNSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Alliance of Nonprofits for Insurance Grp 10023

insured NAT1C0U-21

Evident Change
717 John Nolen Dr.
Madison, Wl 53713

INSURER B: Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company 22357

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1177149063 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY COt^RACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS."

INSR
^TR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL

INSD
SUBR

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY1

POLICY EXP
fMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILfTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR

y 2024-71332 11/14/2024 11/14/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
UAMAGt lUKbNIbU
PREMISES fEa occurrence) $ 500.000

MED EXP (Any one person) $20,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENt AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

X PODGY 1 15^ 1 |lOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 2024-71332 11/14/2024 11/14/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ee acddeni)

$1,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni) $

X X NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

$

Comp & CoUtion $ 0/$500

A X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

^ OCCUR 2024-71322-UMB 11/14/2024 11/14/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2.000,000

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 2.000,000

DEO RETENTIONS $

a WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILfTY y, ̂
ANYPROPRJETOR/PARTNER/EXECLfTIVE I 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOEO?
(Mandatory In NH) \ '
If yes. describe under
OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

57WECBC4TK7 12/11/2024 12/11/2025
V  1 PER OTH-
^  1 STATUTE F.R

E-L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMrr $1,000,000

A Professiorial Liability 2024-71332 11/14/2024 11/14/2025 Per Claim •

Aogreeate
SI,000.000
52.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUon«l RamArks Schadula, mty b« atuchtd If mora apaca is raqulrad)

Policy: Excess Cyber Liability (1st Layer)
Policy#: EKS3550243
Carrier: Scottsdale Insurance Company
Policy Term: 11/14/2024 to 11/14/2025
Limit: S5.000.000 / Aggregate: $5,000,000 / Retention:S25,000

Policy: Excess Cyber Liability (2nd Layer)
Policy#: CY5EX00220-241
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of New Hampshire, NH Dept. of Health and Human
Svcs.
Catherine Cormier, Contract Administrator
129 Pleasant
St Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRtBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPUSENTAT1VE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: NATICOU-21

LOC#:

ACORcf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page i of i
AGENCY

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC
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Inform Systems. Transform Lives.

Our Mission

We promote just and equitable social systems for individuals, families,
and communities through research, public policy, and practice.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Audit iff the Financial Statements

Oninion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Evident Change, a New York nonprofit public
benefit corporation, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Evident
Change as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
(Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are required to be independent of Evident Change and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emnhasis ofMatter — New Accountine Standard

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements. Evident Change adopted the new accounting guidance
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America on current expected credit losses.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

BKR Certipieo Pueuic Accountants, 301 HowacJ Suect, Suite 850, Sin Francbco, Cilifornla 94105Telephone 415 957 9999 Fiuimile 415 957 i£29 http://www.lvhj.eom

An Independent Member Firm of BKR International with Associates in Principal Cities Worldwide
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Evident Change's abilit>' to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

A udilor's ResponsibUities for the A iidil of(he Financial Slalements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute .assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Covernnteni Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatemcnt when it e.xists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemcnt resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatemcnts, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemcnt of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Evident Change's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

SuDDlemeniar\' Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 24 and 27, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibilit>' of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Renonim Required hv Government Auditins Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 9, 2025 on
our consideration of Evident Change's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Evident Change's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Januar)' 9,2025
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A Ne^v York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

Current assets;

Cash

Accounts receivable (Note 3):

2024 2023

629,295 $ 1,075.296

Contracts with custotners - net 3,921,215 3,329,060

Unbilled 1 13,350 330,895

Other 1,157 -

Contributions receivable (Note 3) 225.000 250,000

Prepaid expenses 321.804. 392.102

Investments (Note 4) 7.643,285 6.080,694

Total current assets 12.855.106 11,458.047

Contributions receivable - net of current portion (Note 3) _ 225,000

Beneficial interest in perpetual trust (Note 4) 219.526 208.984

Property and equipment - net (Note 5) 314.311 1,745,066

Right-of-use assets - operating lease (Note 7) 2.299,288 115,633

Right-of-use assets - finanee lease (Note 7) 10,110 51,562

Security deposits 18.121 24.009

Total assets . $  15.716,462 $ 13.828.301

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Notes payable - current portion (Note 6)
Operating lease liabilities (Note 7)
Finance lease liabilities —current portion (Note 7)

Deferred contract revenue (Note 8)

Total current liabilities

Notes payable — net of current portion (Note 6)
Operating lease liabilities - net of current portion (Note 7)
Finance lease liabilities — net of current portion (Note 7)

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions (Note 9)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

S  605.758

1.183,428

1 10.926

11,080

728.026

532.179

1.104.589

31.454

98.433

40.482

918.422

2.639.218 2.725.559

1,077.855

2.217.343 .

- 1 1,080

4,856.561 3,814,494

10,004.367 8,820,955

855.534 1.192,852

10.859,901 10,013.807

$  15.716,462 S 13,828.301

The accompanying notes arc an integral part ofthesefinancial slalemenis.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

IHihoui

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

Support and revenue;

Contract income (Note 2)

Contributions

Investment income

Royalt>' income (Note 14)

Gain from sale of ofTlce land and building at Madison (Note 5)

$ 19.983.880

39.451

757.019

39.850

1.072.629

1.309

130.000

10.542

$ 19.983.880

169.451

767.561

39.850

1.072.629

1.309

Total support and revenue 21.894,138 140.542 22.034.680 17,582.949 1.132.933 18.715.882

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions (Note 9) 477.860 (477.860) 601.248 (601.248)

Total support and revenue 22.371.998 (337.318) 22.034.680 18.184.197 531.685 18.715.882

1i.\penses:

Program services:
Adult Criminal Justice

Juvenile Justice

Child Welfare

Adult Protective Services

IZducniiun

Supporting services:

Management and general

1-undraising

3.020.931

1.173.462

9.281.967

652.023

156.678

6.903.384

141

-

3.020.931

1.173.462

9.281.967

652.023

156.678

6.903.384

141

4.176.288

919.465

8.565,625

507,121

189.976

4,337.245

4.212 ■

-

4.176.288

919.465

8.565.625

507.121

189.976

4.337.245

4.212

Total e.xpenscs 21.188.586 21.188.586 18,699.932 18.699.932

Change in net assets 1.183.412 (337.318) 846.094 (515,735) 531.685 15.950

Net assets, beginning of year 8.820.955 1.192.852 10.013.807 9,336.690 661,167 9.997.857

Net assets, end of year $ 10.004.367 J  855.534 $ 10.859.901 $ 8.820.955 $  1.192,852 $ 10.013.807

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions

$ 17.081.746

34.406

431.609

31.800

3.388

1.122.350

10.583

Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthesefinancial statements.
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$ 17.081.746

1.156.756

442.192

31.800

3.388
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(/I A'cmv Vork Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024

I'rosram Services Supfyyr/inn Services

Aduli Adult Total Total

Criminal Jinvnile ChiUI I'roteclrve I'ro^ram Management Supporting

Jufiice Justice Welfare Services Education Services and General I'umlraising Services Total

Salaries and related expenses S  699.478 %  777,549 S 6.143.002 S  486.012 $  123.943 S 8.229.984 S 3.838.970 S 75 S 3.839.045 8 12.069.029

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 176.727 189.193 1.485.889 115.984 30.771 1.998.564 1.316.439 28 1.316.467 3.315.031

Total salaries and related expenses 876.205 966.742 7.628.891 601.996 154,714 10,228.548 5.155.409 103 5.155.512 15.384.060

Consultants 1.633.557 119.869 772.291 21.831 179 2.547.727 876.326 14 876.340 3.424.067

Legal - - ' . . . 23.240 - 23.240 23.240

Travel 61.279 35.568 414.795 9.094 945 521.681 106.991 1 "106.992 628.673

Equipment 162.222 15.824 132.230 4.015 117 314,408 244.103 9 244.112 558.520

Occupancy costs 98.445 9.379 75,027 2.224 71 185,146 146.653 5 146.658 331.804

Communications 10.095 3.888 84.716 7.278 7 105,984 30.992 - 30.992 136.976

Supplies 3.030 656 6.369 68 104 10,227 5.584 - 5.584 15.811

Conferences and meetings 2.047 395 5.360 46 1 7.849 3.102 • 3.102 10.951

Interest . • . - . - 28,832 - 28.832 28.832

Insurance 65.843 6.273 50.173 1.488 . 48 123,825 98,984 4 98.988 222,813

Hostage and shipping 2.193 264 2.538 53 2 5.050 3.257 - 3.257 8.307

Copying and printing 216 1.068 5.450 5 •
6.739 324

-
324 7.063

Miscellaneous 26.873 3.636 25.227 573 18 56.327 50.629 1 50.630 106.957

Total expenses before depreciation 2.942.005 1.163.562 9.203.067 648.671 156.206 14,113.511 6.774.426 137 6.774.563 20.888.074

Depreciation 76.554 7.294 58.336 1.730 55 143.969 115.087 4 115.091 259.060

Amorti/aiion 2.372 .  2.606 20.564 1.622 417 27.581 13.871 . 13.871 41.452

Total expenses S 3.020.931 S  1.173.462 $ 9.281.967 S  652.023 S  156.678 S 14.285.061 S 6.903.384 8 141 S 6.903.525 8 21.188.586

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthesefinancial statements.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2023

frvgram Scn'ices Supporting Services
Atluli Adtdl Total Total

Criminal Jio'cnile Child Protective Program Management Supporting
Jusiivc Jtcnicc Wdfure Services Educatiun Service.' anddencral Fumlraising Services Total

Salaries and related expenses S  1.-498.782 S  609.009 S  5.728.444 S  391.488 S  149.451 $  8.377.174 $ 2.332.251 $ 3.139 S  2.335.390 S 10,712.564

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 332.309 136.128 I.28I.04I 87.471 32,762 1.869.711 893.954 726 894.680 2.764.391

Total salaries and related expenses 1.831.091 745.137 7.009.485 478.959 182.213 10.246.885 3.226.205 3.865 3.230.070 13.476.955

Cunsullants 1.948.868 53.194 703.982 3.829 303 2.710.176 379.532 45 379,577 3.089,753

Legal - 8 152 . . 160 6,771 - 6.771 6.931

Travel 56.759 17.491 238.079 2.012 961 315.302 53.645 2 53.647 368.949

Equipment 239.002 15.678 324.827 5.493 150 585.150 29.579 22 29.601 •  614.751

OccuparKv costs 50.763 20.657 194.322 13.278 5,051 284.071 89,439 107 89.546 373.617

Communications 28.381 1.183 17.084 143 IS 46.809 (1.377) 3 (1.374) 45.435

Supplies 4.624 579 7.770 20 3 12.996 42.843 . 42,843 55.839

Conferences and meetings 392 4.589 5,759 2
- 10.742 5.782 - 5,782 16.524

Interest 6.035 2.456 23.102 1,579 601 33.773 10.632 13 10,645 44.418

Insurance - - - - . - 244.328 . 244,328 244.328

Postage and shipping 181 32 319 1 . 533 10.698 - 10,698 11.231

Copying and printing 596 361 1.660 1 - 2.618 2.521 - 2,521 5.139

Miseellaneuus 2.816 54.852 3.844 31 I 61.544 (15.373) 141 (15.232) 46.312

Total expenses before depreciation 4.169.508 916.217 8.530.385 505.348 189.301 14.310.759 4.085.225 4.198 4,089,423 18.400,182

Depreciation . 489 9.286 _ . 9.775 240.073 240,073 249,848

Amortization 6.780 2.759 25.954 1.773 675 37.941 11.947 14 11,961 49,902

Total expenses S 4.176.288 S  919.465 S  8.565.625 S  507.121 $  189.976 $ 14,358.475 $ 4.337,245 S 4,212 S 4.341.457 S 18,699.932

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthesefinancial statements.

1
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofn Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Gain from bcnencial interest in perpetual trust

Gain from sale of office land and building at Madison

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation
Amortization — right-of-usc assets — finance lease

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Contract receivable — net

Unbilled receivable

Contributions receivable

Other receivable

Prepaid expenses

Security deposits

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred contract revenue

Deferred rent

Operating lease liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of ofTice land and building

Net increase in investments

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payment of notes payable

Payment of finance lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

2024 2023

$  846.094 S  15.950

(10.542) (10.583)

(1.072.629) -

2,1 18 -

259.060 249.848

41,452 .  49.902

(592.155) 567.855

217.545 (123.861)

250.000 (475.000)

(1.157) -

70.298 (147.253)

5.888 -

73.579 (100.440)

78,839 172.498

(190.396) 68.858

- (30.202)

46.181 (17.200)

(821,919) 204.422

24,175 220.372

2.450.000

(1.562.591) (3.490.823)

(207.794) (249.654)

679.615 (3.740.477)

(1.109,309) (30.337)

(40,482) (55.458)

(1.149.791) (85.795)

(446.001) (3.605.900)

1.075.296 4.681.196

$  629.295 S  1.075.296

Supplementaiy information:
Cash paid for interest:

Notes payable

Finance lease

Noncash investing activityicasn investing activity:

Lease assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations — operating lease

27,421

1.41 I

45.091

$ 28.832 $ 45.091

S 2.183.655 S 1 15.633

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of thesefinancial statements.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

C/4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Evident Change (formerly National Council on Crime & Delinquency) was incorporated in New York on
October 1, 1907, as a public benefit corporation. Evident Change promotes just and equitable social systems for
individuals, families and communities through research, public policy and practice. Evident Change conducts its
programs and operations nationally and internationally through offices in Oakland, Califomia, and Madison, Wisconsin.

Evident Change is involved in the following projects;

Adult Criminal Justice

Evident Change works with states, counties, legislators, law enforcement, and public and private organizations
to demonstrate, test, and evaluate innovative alternatives to ineffective and costly adult criminal justice practices.
Evident Change's goals in adult criminal justice are to build more efficient and humane practices in the adult system,
while stressing non-incarceration and community-based alternatives to incarceration.

Juvenile Justice

Evident Change develops research, programs, and policies that promote fair, effective, and age appropriate
treatment of youth. Evident Change works to improve young people's chances to become successful. For those
incarcerated, Evident Change wants ever>' youth in the juvenile justice system to be safe and healthy, to have the
opportunity for academic success, to develop an understanding of his or her behavior, and to gain hope for a better
future.

Child Welfare

Evident Change believes that ever)' child deserves to be safe and supported at home and in the community.
Evident Change works with families and child welfare agencies to help protect children from abuse and neglect, and to
improve permanency in the home.

Adult Protective Services

Evident Change helps adult protective services (APS) agencies use research as the basis for APS decisions
through the implementation of research-based and structured assessments. Identifying adults who are at high risk of
subsequent maltreatment or self-neglect may help workers target engagement efforts more effectively toward those
adults most in need of long-temi services.

Education

Evident Change is committed to promoting social systems based on the principles of equality and fairness,
which value human rights and the dignity of ever)' human being. Refonn and system change are needed to ensure that
all people have access to equal academic, economic, political, and social opportunities.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accountins Method

Evident Change uses the accrual method of accounting, which recognizes revenue in the period earned and
expenses when incurred, regardless of the timing of payments.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit' Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformit)' with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Forcien Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates at the date of the
transactions. When settlement of a transaction occurs, a foreign currency transaction gain or loss may result based on
the net change in the exchange rate between the transaction date and the settlement date. Foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities are retranslated to the functional currency, U.S. dollar, using the exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Losses from foreign currency transactions are reported on the statements of functional expenses.

Basis ofPresentation

Evident Change reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets, as applicable: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

•  Net assets without donor restrictions include those assets over which the Board of Directors has

discretionary control in canying out the operations of Evident Change.

•  Net assets with donor restrictions include those assets subject to donor restrictions and for which the
applicable restrictions were not met as of the end of the current reporting period. Some donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. When a donor restriction expires - that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished - net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net'assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, since the donor stipulates the
resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Revenue Recognition

Contract Income

Evident Change's contract income is primarily derived from fixed fee and cost-reimbursable federal and state
contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurring of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts earned are recognized as revenue when Evident Change has the right to bill either the
time or expenses incurred under terms of the contract. As such. Evident Change's services are transferred to customers
over a period of time and Evident Change generally, has the right to bill the revenue monthly or quarterly as the services
are rendered, Some contracts do not permit billing until a deliverable is completed at which time the revenue is earned.
The table below summarizes Evident Change's timing of revenue recognition by contract type for the year ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024

Products transferred to customers at a point in time
SeiA'ices transferred to customers over time

Total

Time and

Fixed Fee Expense
Contracts Contracts Tola!

$ S  3,150.141 S  3,150,141
16.833.739 - 16,833,739

S  16,833,739 S  3,150,141 S  19,983,880

10
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2023

Products transferred to customers at a point in time
Services transferred to customers over time

Total

Time and

Fixed Fee Expense
Contracts Contracts Total

$ $  3,391,572 $  3;391,572
13.690.174 . 13.690.174

$  13,690,174 $  3,391,572 $  17,081,746

Government contracts, which are generally funded on a cost-reimbursement basis, are deemed to be exchange
transactions and are therefore not treated as contributions. Revenues from such activities are shown as unrestricted

contract income in the statements of activities. Included in government contracts are federal awards from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, which comprised 9% and 8% of total support and revenue in 2024 and
2023, respectively.

A portion of Evident Change's contract income is from subscription agreements which is recognized ratably
over the subscription period, generally one year.

Evident Change has approximately 210 projects in place as of June 30, 2024 with completion dates in the
future ranging year 2025 through 2028. The budget for completing these projects in the future is approximately
$20,100,000.

Contributions

Evident Change recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an unconditional promise to
give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable
performance or other barrier and a right of return - arc not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have
been met.

Contributions received from donors that direct Evident Change to distribute the contributed assets, the return
on investment on those assets, or both to a specified unaffiliated beneficiar>' are recognized as revenue if the donor
explicitly grants Evident Change variance power, or the unilateral power to redirect the use of the transferred assets to
another beneficiary.

Cash

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Evident Change occasionally
maintains cash on deposit at a bank in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. The uninsured cash
balance was approximately $345,000 as of June 30, 2024. Evident Change has not experienced any losses in such
accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Receivables consist of billed reimbursable costs incurred for cost-reimbursement grants and revenue earned
from consulting contracts and program subscriptions. Amounts billed arc generally payable within 30 days with no
financing component.
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New Accountiiw Standard on Current Expected Credit Losses

New accounting standards on current expected credit losses, required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, significantly changed how entities measure credit losses for most financial
assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. The most significant change
in this standard is a shift from the incurred loss model to the expected loss model. Under the standard, disclosures are

required to provide users of the financial statements with useful information in analyzing an entity's exposure to credit
risk and the measurement of credit losses.

Evident Change adopted the standard effective July I, 2023. The impact of the adoption was not considered
material to the financial statements and primarily resulted in new and enhanced disclosures only.

Evident Change estimates an allowance for credit losses on customer account balances that may not be
collected which is an estimate based upon historical account write-off trends, facts about the current financial condition
and forecasts of future operating results. A review is made of each customer balance where all or a portion of the unpaid
balance exceeds 30 days from the invoice date. Based on an assessment of the customer's current credit\vorthiness, an
estimate of the balance that may not be collected is made. In addition, an amount of estimated credit losses on the
aggregate remaining accounts receivable Is made based on past collection experience. Once all efforts to collect have
been undertaken, the unpaid balance is written off as a charge to the allowance for credit losses. The allowance for
credit losses was $50,000 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Investments

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, fair value is defined as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America establish a fair value hierarchy for
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable
inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of
Evident Change. Unobservable inputs, if any, reflects Evident Change's assumption about the inputs market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liabilitj' developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The
fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
Evident Change has the ability to access at measurement date. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are
not applied to Level I securities. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly
available in an active market, valuation of these securities docs not entail a significant degree ofjudgment.

Level 2 - Valuations based on significant inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly or quoted
prices in markets that are not active, that is, markets in which there are few transactions, the prices are not
current, or price quotations var>' substantially either over time or among market makers.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

12
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The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from security to security and is
affected by a wide variety of factors, including the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet established
in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the e.ttem that valuation is based on models
or inputs that arc less observable or unobscrvabic in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.
Those estimated values do not necessarily represent the amounts that may be ultimately realized due to the occurrence
of future circumstances that cannot be reasonably determined. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those
estimated values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used had a ready market for
the securities e.xisied.

Investment Income and Gains

Investment income and gains restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restrictions are mot (that is when a stipulated time restriction ends, or purpose restriction is
accomplished) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition, or fair value if donated. The cost of maintenance and
repairs that neither significantly add to the permanent value of a property nor prolong its intended useful life is charged
to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

The useful lives of the assets are estimated as follows:

Building and improvements 5 to 25 years
Furniture 3 to 15 years
Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 > ears

Leases

The accounting standard on leases, required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, requires lessees to account for leases as either finance leases or operating leases and to recognize right-of-use
(ROU) assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases other than leases
with terms of 12 months or less. For finance leases, lessees would recognize interest expense and amortization of the
ROU asset, and for operating leases, lessees would recognize straight-line total rent expense. The accounting standard
also requires additional disclosures about the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases.

Evident Change accounts for the lease of office space and building as operating lease and lease of equipment
as finance lease.

income Taxes

Evident Change is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501 (c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code and
the related New York, Wisconsin and California code sections.

Evident Change believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have
any uncertain lax positions that are material to the financial statements. Evident Change's federal and state information
returns for the years 2020 through 2023 are subject to examination by regulatory agencies, generally for three years and
four years after they were filed for federal and state, respectively.

13
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Functional Expenses Allocation

The costs of providing program services and supporting services are summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities and statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs are allocated among program
services and supporting services based on estimates of employees" time incurred and on usage of resources. Directly
identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. See Note 11 for the allocation method.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January' 9, 2025, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

On July 22, 2024, Evident Change renewed the $500,000 line of credit from The Park Bank as working capital,
with a variable interest rate calculated as index plus .500 percentage points over the index per annum, which will mature
on July 22, 2025. The line is secured by various assets of Evident Change and requires monthly payments of interest
only.

Rcclassification

Certain amounts previously reported in the 2023 financial statements were reclassificd to conform to the 2024
presentation for comparative purposes.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivables are summarized as follows:

2024 2023

Contract receivable

Less: allowance for credit losses

Net contract receivable

Unbilled time and expenses
Other

Total accounts receivables

Contributions receivables are summarized as follows:

$  3,971.215 S 3,379,060
(50,000) (50,000)

3,921.215 3,329,060
113,350 330,895

1.157 -

S  4,035.722 $ 3,659,955

2024 2023

S  225.000 S 475,000
(225,000) (250,000)

Contributions receivable

Less: current portion

Long term portion - contributions $ $ 225,000

In 2021, an unconditional grant amounting to 5100,000 was awarded to Evident Change and was fully received
in 2021. In 2023, the grant was amended to $150,000 and the term was extended up to December 2023, $25,000 of
which was received in November 2022 and July 2023.

14
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In October 2022, another unconditional grant amounting of $820,000 was awarded to Evident Change of which
$370,000 and $225,000 was received in 2022 and 2023, respectively. The remaining $225,000 is to be received in 2024.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the contributions receivable amounted to $225,000 and $475,000, respectively.

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - INVESTMENTS

The following financial instruments are valued using Level 1 inputs:

2024 2023

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

Cost (Level D

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

Cost' (Level 1)

Cash $ 68,651 $ 68,651

Money market funds 1,627,296 1,627,296
Exchange traded funds 1,875,429 2,132.468
Mutual funds 3,466,467 3,800,528
Other assets 14,101 14,342

S 148,024 $ 148,024
2,022,993 2,022,993
1.237,047 1,288,598
2,621,411 2,609,714

12,329 11.365

$  7,051,944 $ 7,643.285 S 6.041,804 $ 6,080,694

The following financial instruments are valued using Level 3 inputs:

2024 2023

Significant
Unobservablc

Inputs
Cost (Level 3)

Significant
Unobservablc

Inputs
Cost (Level 3)

Beneficial interest in perpetual trust $ 191.602 $ 219.526 $ 200.265 $ 208,984

The following table sets forth the detailed changes in fair value for Evident Change's Level 3 financial
instruments:

2024 2023

Beginning balance $ 208,984
Realized and unrealized gain 10.542

S 198,401
10,583

Ending balance $ 219.526 $ 208,984
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Evident Change was named as a beneficiary in a perpetual trust (the Trust) held by PNC Bank, N.A (Trustee).
According to the trust agreement, the corpus of the Trust is to be held by the Trustee and the Trustee is to make
installment distributions of 10% of the net income derived from the Trust to Evident Change in perpetuity. Variance
power has been granted to the Trustee which gives the Trustee power to redirect distributions of income to another
named beneficiaiy nonprofit organization in the event that Evident Change ceases to exist. Additionally, the Trust is
subject to the Trustee's investment and spending policies. Evident Change reports the fair value of their portion of the
Trust as Beneficial Interest in Perpetual, Trust in the statements of financial position as net assets with donor
restrictions, while distributions received and changes in the value of the Trust are classified as net assets without donor
restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions, respectively, and are reported as Investment Income in the statements
of activities.

The beneficial interest in assets held by the Trustee has been valued, as a practical expedient, at the fair value
of Evident Change's share of the corpus (17% as of June 30, 2024 and 2023) as of the measurement date, utilizing
valuations provided by the investment funds. The Trustee values securities and other financial instruments on a fair
value basis of accounting. The estimated fair values of certain investments of the Trustee, which includes private
placements and other securities for which prices are not readily available, are determined by the management of the
Trustee and may not reflect amounts that could be realized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately tiiay be
realized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had
a ready market existed for these investments.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

2024 2023

Land

Building and improvements
Furniture

Computer and olTice equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment

$ S  683,000
- 2,180,800

282.098 279.738

1,918,404 1.936,752 .

2,200,502 5,080,290
(1,886,191) (3,335.224)

$  314.311 S  1,745,066

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30,2024 and 2023 was S259.060 and $249,848, respectively.

In November 2022, Evident Change entered into a real estate purchase agreement to sell the office land and
building located at 426 Yellowstone Drive, Madison, Wisconsin, for a selling price of $2,450,000. The sale was
completed in January 2024. The net carr>'ing amount of the land and building at the time of sale was $1,377,371
resulting to gain of$l,072,629.
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NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are secured by the Wisconsin property unless other%vise noted and consist of the following:

2024 2023

Park Bank loan, in the original amount of $ 1.190,000, bears a simple interest of
3.95%, payable in monthly principal and interest installments of $6,286, and
balloon payment of approximately $1,039,400, payable on its maturity date,
September 16,2025. Interest expense was $27,421 and S45,09l in 2024 and
2023, respectively. In January 2024, the loan was paid off with the proceeds
from sale of office land and building at Madison (see Note 5). S $  1,109,309

Total - 1,109,309

Less: current portion (31,454)

Long-term portion S $  1,077.855

NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

Qperatim Lease

Evident Change leases office space under non-cancelable leases accounted for as operating leases in Oakland,
California. On October I, 2018, Evident Change relocated and entered into a lease agreement for an office in Oakland,
with a 5-year term expiring November 30, 2023. The lease was renewed for another 5 years ending November 30, 2028,
with an option to extend the lease up to November 30, 2033.

In January 2024, concurrent to the sale of its office land and building at Madison, Wisconsin, Evident Change
entered into a lease agreement with the lessor (buyer) which is accounted for as operating lease with a 10-year term
expiring on January 31,2034, with an option to extend the lease up to Januar>' 31, 2039.

Rental expense included in operating expenses was $249,808 and $264,506 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities were $212,510 and $286,009 in 2024 and 2023.
respectively, as part of operating cash flows from the operating lease.

As of June 30, 2024, the average remaining lease term and discount rate for the operating leases was 12 years
and 4.5%, respectively. The lease assets and liabilities were calculated utilizing the risk-free discount rate of 4.5%,
according to Evident Change's elected policy, the options to renew the operating lease were considered when assessing
the value of the ROU assets because Evident Change is reasonably certain that it will exercise its option to renew the
leases.
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The line items in the statements of financial position which include amounts for the operating lease are
summarized as follows:

2024 2023

Right-of-use assets - operating lease

Total operating lease liabilities $ 2,328,269 $ 98,433
Less: current portion (1 10,926) (98,433)

Long-term portion $ 2,217,343 $ -

Finance Lease

Evident Change leases certain office equipment under capital leases. The lease agreements contain a bargain
purchase option at the end of the lease term. The economic substance of the leases is that Evident Change is financing
the acquisition of the assets through the leases, and accordingly, these are recorded in Evident Change's assets and
liabilities.

Accumulated amortization expense included in income from continuing operations in 2024 and 2023 was
$41,452 and $49,902. Interest expense was $1,411 and $-0-, respectively.

The line items in the statements of financial position which include amounts for the finance lease are
summarized as follows:

2024 2023

Righl-of-use assets - finance lease

Total finance lease liabilities $ 1 1,080 S 51,562
Less: current portion (1 1,080) (40,482)

Long-term portion
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Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and operating leases as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Finance Operating
Leases Leases

2025 $  11,172 S  212,665
2026 - 217,516

2027 - 221,881
2028 - 226,965
Thereafter - 2,261,587

Total minimum lease payments 11,172 3,140,614
Less: amount representing interest (92) (812.345)

present value of minimum lease payments 11,080 2,328,269
Less: current portion (1 1,080) (110,926)

Long-term portion $ $  2,217,343

NOTE 8 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of the following:

2024 2023

Unearned subscription revenue S 728,026 S 918,422

Evident Change provides subscription services for its Safemeasures reporting tool, and assessment and supervision
strategy systems such as the Juvenile Assessment and Intervention System (JAIS), Correctional Assessment and
Intervention System (CAIS), and Structured Decision Making (SDM). Unearned subscriptions consist of program
subscriptions collected in advance of providing the related ser\'ice and are deferred to recognize as contract income
over the term of each subscription.

19



Docusign Envelope ID: 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-676F-4685E12C97DC

EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are for the following purposes or periods:

2024

Realised and

Releases from Unrealized

June 30. 2023 Contributions Restrictions Gain June 30, 2024

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose;
Juvenile Justice $  2,401 $ S  (2,401) S S

Child Welfare 28,033 - (28,033) - -

Data for Equity 95,336 - (34,477) - 60,859
Community Justice 149,168 130,000 (178,640) - .100,528
Human Ser\'ices 708,930 - (234,309) - 474,621

Not subject to spending policy or
appropriation;
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust

(Note 4) 208.984 - - 10,542 219,526

$  1,192,852 $  130,000 S  (477,860) S  10,542 S  855,534

2023

Realised and

Releasesfrom Unrealized

June 30. 2022 Contributions Restrictions Loss June 30, 2023

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose:
Juvenile Justice $  104,330 $  50,000 $  (151,929) $ $  2,401

Child Welfare 71,350 - (43,317) - 28,033

Data for Equity 287,086 - (191,750) - 95,336

Communit>' Justice - 252,350 (103,182) - 149,168
Human Sen'ices - 820,000 (1 11,070) - 708,930

Not subject to spending policy or
appropriation:
Beneficial interest in perpetual tmst

(Note 4) 198.401 - - 10,583 208.984

$  661,167 $ 1,122,350 $  (601.248) S  10,583 $ 1.192,852
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NOTE 10 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet dale comprise the
following:

2024 2023

Financial assets at end of year:
Cash

Contracts receivable - net

Contributions

Other receivables

Investments •

Less financial assets not available for general expenditures:
Cash and contributions receivable

subject to expenditure for specific purpose

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year

5  629,295 5  1,075,296
3,921,215 3,329,060
225.000 250,000

1,157 -

7,643.285 6,080,694

12,419,952 10,735,050

(636.007) (713,868)

5  11,783,945 $  10,021,182

The above net financial assets available for general expenditures include 5728,026 and 5918,422 in deferred
revenue which had not been earned as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

As a part of Evident Change's liquidit)' management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. Evident Change has a goal to maintain
financial assets, which consist of cash and short-term investments, on hand to meet normal operating expenses. In
addition. Evident Change invests cash in excess of daily requirements in mutual funds as short-term investments.
However, some financial assets must be maintained to meet Evident Change's responsibilities to its donors.
Accordingly, Evident Change maintains resources subject to expenditure for specific purpose in cash and highly liquid
assets.

NOTE 11 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES '

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of expenses by
function. Certain categories of expenses are attributed to more than one program or supporting function that require
consistent allocation on a reasonable basis. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll
taxes, supplies, copying and printing, communications, postage and shipping, occupancy costs, equipment, and
miscellaneous expenses. These expenses have been allocated on the basis of the billable amount of a function over the
total billable amount of all functions. Total billable amount is employees' actual time charges multiplied by their
respective billing rates.

21



Docusign Envelope ID: 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-876F-46B5E12C97DC

EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 12-RETIREMENT PLAN

Evident Change maintains two retirement plans that benefit employees, the Pension Plan and the 403(b) Plan.

Evident Change provides a!) the funding for the Pension Plan quarterly. Employees become eligible for a
share, based on a percentage of their eligible compensation (4% of compensation within the FICA base and an
additional 2.6% of compensation above the FICA base for the year ended June 30, 2024), of the contribution made by
Evident Change upon completion of one year of service with at least 1,000 hours worked. Employees vest in their share
of the contributions received from Evident Change ratably over five years of service, beginning with the second year of
service, with employment for at least 1,000 hours during each fiscal year. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
Evident Change incurred pension plan expenses totaling $411,770 and $371,341, respectively.

Employees of Evident Change fund the 403(b) Plan. Evident Change allows its eligible employees to defer a
portion of their compensation into a defined contribution plan under section 403(b) of the IRC. Evident Change does not
contribute to the 403(b) Plan.

NOTE 13-LINEOF CREDIT

On July 22, 2021, Evident Change obtained a $500,000 line of credit from The Park Bank as working capital,
with a variable interest rate calculated as index plus .500 percentage points over the index per annum, which matured on
July 22, 2022. The line is secured by various assets of Evident Change and requires monthly payments of interest only.
The line was renewed on July 22, 2022 and 2023, with the same variable interest rale, which matured on July 22,2023
and 2024, respectively. There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 14-COMMITMENTS AND OTHER MATTER

SDN! Prosram Product Module

In 2008, Evident Change entered into a collaboration agreement with a computer manufacturing and software
company to develop and market a product'module related to Evident Change's SDM program. The agreement provides
for the allocation of revenue from the-license sales of the product module between Evident Change and the software
company. Royalty income from this agreement was recognized for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 amounted to
$39,850 and $31,800, respectively.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Title

Federal

Assistance Agency or
Listing Pass-Through
Number Number

Federal Expenditures to
Expenditures Subrecipienis

U.S. Department of Justice:

Direct award: National Institute of Justice

Research, Evaluation, and Development
Project Grants 16.560

Pass-through award from Community Solutions:
Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Pass-through awards from California
Department of Social Services:
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658

Pass-through awards from Arkansas Division of
Children and Families:

Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658

Pass-through awards from Los Angeles Count>'
Department of Public Social Services:
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658

Pass-through awards from San Francisco County
Department of Public Social Services:
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658

Subtotal Program 93.658

Pass-through awards from New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services:
Elder Abuse Prevention Interventions

Program 93.747

S  184,703 $

6,120

190,823

430,550

1,035,482

30,794

35,887

I.532.7I4

55.905
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throttgh Grantor/
Program Title

Federal

Assistance Agency or
Listing Pass-Through
Number Number

Pass-through awards from Kentucky
Department of Health and Human Services:
Promoting Safe and Stable Families

Program

Pass-through awards from Kentucky
Department of Health and Human Services:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance

State/Replacement Designee
Administered Programs

Subtotal Program 93.566

Total U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

93.556

93.566

Federal Expenditures to
Expenditures Subrecipients

234,161

25,941

260,102

1,848,720

$ 2,039,542 $
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EVIDENTCHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A Ne\v York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE I -BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal grant
activities of Evident Change and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Fart 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may difTer from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the basic financial statements. The purpose of the Schedule is to present a summary of those activities of Evident
Change for the year ended June 30, 2024, which have been financed by the U.S. Government. For purposes of the
Schedule, federal awards include all federal assistance entered into directly and indirectly between Evident Change and
the federal government. Evident Change did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
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EVIDENT CHANGE

(FORMERLY NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY)

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material \veakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficicncy(ies) identified that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to be reported in
accordance with Section 200.516 of the Uniform Guidance?

Unmodified

,Yes

.Yes

Yes

.Yes

Yes

Unmodified

Yes

X  No

2^ None reported

X  No

No

_X None reported

No

Identification of major programs:

ALN 93.658

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 5750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes

Name ofFederal Program or Cluster

Title IV-E Foster Care

No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None noted.

Section HI > Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.
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LINDQUIST

VON HUSEN

& JOYCE Hp
CerUfkd Publk Accountants

Charlotte Sibw-Kun Tait

Cathy L Hwang

Rita B. Dela Cruz

Scott K. Smith

Crisanto S. Francisco

Joe F. Huie

Sherman C. Lkonc

Kylr F. Ganley

Board of Directors

Evident Change
Oakland, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENTAUDITI/VG STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Covernmeni Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Evident Change, which coinprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Januar>' 9, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Evident Change's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatemenl of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify' all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Mailers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Evident Change's financial statements are free from
material misstaiement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that arc required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Evident Change's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

^  /-l- ̂
Januar)' 9, 2025

29



Docusign Envelope ID: 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-fi76F-4685E12C97DC

LINDQUIST
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Cathy L Hwang

Rita B. Dela Cruz

Scott K. Smith

CriSlanto S. Francisco

Joe F. Huih

Sherman G. Leonc

Kvu! F. Cani.ey

Board of Directors

Evident Change
Oakland, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR MAJOR

FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Report on Compliance for Major Federal Prosram

Opinion on Maior Federal Program

We have audited Evident Change's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
0MB Compliance Supplemeni that could have a direct and material effect on Evident Change's major federal program
for the year ended June 30, 2024. Evident Change's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, Evident Change complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30,
2024.

Basis for Opinion on Maior Federal Prosram

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aiicliling Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance arc further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Evident Change and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our, audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of Evident Change's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.
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ResponsibHilies of Manasenient for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes,
regulations, rules, and provision of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Evident Change's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audil of CompUance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Evident Change's
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.
The risk of not detecting thaterial noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report
on compliance about Evident Change's compliance with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Evident Change's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Evident Change's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Evident Change's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that wc identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Contpliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a t)'pe of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Januao' 9,2025
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DAYANA KUPISK

EDUCATION

University of Wisconsin-Madison
MS. human ecology (2016)
PhD, human ecology (2019)

University of Michigan
BA, psychology (2011)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CHILD WELFARE SYSTEMS RESEARCH

May 2022 - Present

Evident Change, Madison, Wisconsin

•  Lead key aspects of research, evaluation and CQI efforts from project initiation through

project completion, including the management of project budgets and deliverables
•  Collaborate across research, analytics, and practice departments to execute implementation

evaluation and CQI efforts across multiple complex projects domestically and internationally
•  Support and mentor staff in growing skills in social justice research and evaluation methods
•  Lead development of project and grant proposals and independent research initiatives

related to decision-making within systems impacting social justice

PROGRAM SPECIALIST

December 2019 - April 2022

Evident Change. Madison. Wisconsin

•  Managed complex multi-year structured decision making (SDM) implementation projects
with CPS agencies in the United States and internationally, while simultaneously supporting
ongoing deliverables such as co-creation of decision-support tools and policy, conducting
inter-rater reliability and field testing, developing curriculum, facilitating training, and
technical assistance

•  Supported development of infrastructure for evaluating SDM implementation and ongoing
CQI

•  Innovated engaging, relevant approaches for training and visioning with diverse
stakeholders

•  Advanced equity efforts through personal development and professional project
contributions
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Worked collaboratively across practice and research departments

RESEARCH CONSULTANT

November 2014 - Present

Dayana Kupisk, PhD, LLC, Madison, Wisconsin

Perform project-based consulting, including data management, program development, and
evaluation projects related to.child and family well-being

PERFORMANCE COACH

May 2019 - December 2021
Candidate Coaching Action Plan Program, Madison, Wisconsin

Support ongoing education and workplace readiness development through one-on-one
monthly coaching and goal planning sessions.

RESEARCH ASSOCIATE

August 2019 - November 2019
Center for Child and Family Well-Being, UW-Madison

•  .Supported Mindfulness Parenting Program evaluation strategies, including survey design,
data analysis, and reporting.

•  Designed communication strategies to be used with stakeholders and readership, including
use of social media.

•  Helped plan and organize International Conference on Mindfulness.
•  Streamlined communication efforts and developed effective reporting tools.

PROJECT MANAGER

November 2018 - May 2019
Money, Relationships, and Equality Initiative. UW-Madison

•  Developed workbook content on wise and equitable financial decision making.
•  Developed innovative communication and engagement processes for readership.
•  Developed strategic planning and stakeholder reporting processes.

PROJECT ASSISTANT

January 2018 - July 2018

Child and Family Ecologies Lab, UW-Madison
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Collected data through interviews and cognitive tasks in lab and home settings with children
and families to understand the role of black/African American fathers in child school

readiness.

Supported recruitment efforts through relationship building and community collaboration.

INSTRUCTOR

September 2016 - December 2018
School of Human Ecology, UW-Madison

•  Designed and facilitated lectures (up to 120 students) and small-group activities for
Consuming Happiness, a course focusing on the intersection of well-being, consumerism,
and self-help.

•  Designed and used evaluation for student success using exams, written assignments, and
group projects.

•  Provided ongoing support to students.

TEACHING ASSISTANT

September 2015 - July 2016
School of Human Ecology, UW-Madison

•  Designed and facilitated small-group discussions for Bridging the Gap: From Research to
Action, a course focusing on the topics of well-being, consumerism, and communication of
research to diverse audiences.

•  Evaluated student progress throughout the semester and provided ongoing support.

PROJECT MANAGER

August 2014 - September 2015
Parenthetical, UW-Extension

Madison, Wisconsin

•  Managed Parenthetical's blog content and communication with readership on the topic of
best practices for parenting teens and tweens.

•  Developed new research-based content for the blog.
•  Gathered and analyzed data on blog readership and trends.
• Worked with state educators to develop pathways to using the blog for local programming

and community building.

YOUTH EMPLOYMENT COUNSELOR

March 2015 - April 2017
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Briarpatch Youth Services, Madison, Wisconsin

•  Designed and facilitated teen and parent training groups on workforce readiness and
parenting practices.

•' Designed systems for tracking client progress for reporting purposes.
•  Built connections with local school districts to expand workplace training for teens.
•  Fostered connections with local businesses to secure supportive work placements for teens.
• Worked as part of a team to assess and tailor programming to meet the needs of unique

groups.

SHELTER ADVOCATE

August 2014 - March 2015
Domestic Abuse Intervention Services, Madison, Wisconsin

Provided real-time crisis intervention and support services for women and children using shelter
services.

YOUTH SPECIALIST/MENTOR

September 2014 - September 2015

Forward Learning Youth and Young Adults, Madison, Wisconsin

Conducted weekly mentoring sessions with teens to develop positive relationships and gain life
skills.

LIFE SKILLS COORDINATOR

January 2010 - August 2013

Ozone House, Ann Arbor, Michigan

•  Designed and facilitated weekly life-skills training for groups of homeless young adults.

•  Managed all transitional living program elements, including oversight of program functions

and staff training and support.

•  Collaborated with case managers to provide clients with weekly goal setting and support,

services.

•  Provided real-time crisis intervention and de-escalation.

•  Provided supervision of programming at a runaway youth shelter.
•  Served as a crisis hotline volunteer.

RESEARCH ASSISTANT
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September 2009 - February 2013
University of Michigan

•  Collected data from child and parent populations in lab and school settings.
•  Completed data entry, coding, and management on topics related to political activism, child

cognitive development, positive youth development, and infertility.
•  Participated in lab team functions, including presentation of data and project idea

development.

SELECT PUBLICATIONS

Henningfield, A., & Kupisk, D. {2017, September/October). Lessons learned in the dark: the role
of practical wisdom in effective camp staffing. Camping Magazine, 90(5), 58-63.
https://www.acacamps.org/resource-library/camping-ma9azine/lessons-iearned-dark-
role-practical-wisdom-effective-camp-staffing

Kupisk, D. (2019). The Practical Guide to Making Wise Financial Decisions [ebook].
https://www.amazon.com/dp/B07S91Z3R2/ref=rdr_kindle_extJmb

Kupisk, D. (2016). Forgiveness over revenge: grief, insight and virtue through education [Guide for
high school counselors to introduce forgiveness to students]. International Forgiveness
Institute. https://internationalforgiveness.com/shop.aspx?p=14609&k=F.O.R.G.I.V.E.

Small, S., &L Kupisk, D. (2015). Family life education: wisdom in practice. In M. Walcheski and J.
Rienke (Eds.), Family life education: the practice of family science (3rd ed.), pp. 17-26.
National Council on Family Relations.
https://my.ncfr.org/ncfrssa/ecssashop.show_product_detail?p_product_serno=3558ip_mo

de=detail

SELECT PRESENTATIONS

Channel 3000. (2017, February 22). Taking time off, staying close to home is beneficial to work,
life, expert says. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H-WwBRugtOM

Small, S. A., 8i Kupisk, D. (2016). The role of wisdom in youth and family practice [Webinar].
National Council on Family Relations, https://vmw.ncfr.org/ncfr-webinars/role-wisdom-
youth-and-family-practice
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EVIDENT
CHANGE
Inform Systems. Transform Lives.

EMERSON IVES

EDUCATION

College of William and Mary - Williamsburg, VA (2014)

BA in Sociology; Gender, Sexuality, and Women's Studies Minor

Tidewater Community College - Chesapeake, VA (2012)

AS with a major in Sociology

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM SPECIALIST

2020—Present

Evident Change, Madison Wl

Manages Community Response Guide and Structured Decision Making* (SDM) implementation
projects. Partners to identify and develop solutions to system challenges.

Engages key jurisdiction stakeholders, partners, and leadership.

Develops innovative curriculums and materials reflective of current research and best practice.

Delivers complex training and coaching.

Oversees equity analysis and planning.

PROGRAM ASSOCIATE

2019-2020

Evident Change, Madison Wl
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Assisted in developing and supporting new SDM* projects through assessment customization,
training, case reading, presentation of implementation findings/recommendations, and other
technical assistance.

Worked collaboratively with project team to produce deliverables. Worked collaboratively with
staff analysts to produce data reports and interpret report findings for clients.

Consulted with and provided support to workgroups integrating jurisdiction-specific protocols for
policy development.

Assisted in the delivery of onsite training in the SDM case management system to strengthen
implementation.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT TRAINING SUPERVISOR

2017-2019

Division of Milwaukee Child Protective Services, Wl

•  Conducted a|l internal trainings for newly hired initial assessment specialists.

•  Collaborated with Milwaukee Child Welfare Partnership (MCWP) to develop and update curriculum

to ensure compliance with Wisconsin State Standards and Statues, Access and Initial Assessment
Standards, Safety and Ongoing Standards, and Division of Milwaukee Child Protective Services
{DMCPS} policy and procedure.

•. Provided direct supervision to training mentors and newly hired staff to include assessment of job
readiness through performance planning and development.

•  Promoted recruitment of new staff by facilitating pre-employment orientation, conducting
interviews, and selecting candidates who best meet qualifications.

•  Promoted knowledge of child welfare in the community through facilitation of Mandated Reporter
trainings.

•  Facilitated trainings and supervised case assignments of new workers using decision support
systems.

•  Participated in quality improvement efforts through Wisconsin Law Enforcement Analyst Network.

•  Partnered with the Equity and Inclusion Advisory Committee on a proposal for transgender
inclusion and training for the State of Wisconsin.

INITIAL ASSESSMENT SPECIALIST

2016-2017

Division of Milwaukee Child Protective Services, Wl

•  Provided child welfare intake and assessment services for children and families in Milwaukee in

accordance with the State of Wisconsin Access and Initial Assessment Standards, Safety

Intervention Standards and Statutes.
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Conducted assessments of alleged child abuse and neglect, Including interviewing household

members and conducting home visits to gather information surrounding alleged maltreatment,

child safety, and child and family function.

Provided structured shadowing opportunities for newly hired staff.

Acted as team mentor by providing training opportunities for newly hired staff, overseeing first
case assessment services and providing feedback to supervisors and program managers, and
volunteering to help team members with assessment tasks.

Participated in workgroups, including Trauma-Informed Care: Professional Development.

Worked collaboratively on an ongoing basis with outside agencies and community partners such as
the Milwaukee Police Department, the Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office, and client
service organizations.

Provided consultative services, intervention, and treatment services to clients and their families to

help them adjust to their specific situation.

FAMILY SERVICES SPECIALIST

2015-2016

James City County Department of Social Services, VA

•  Investigated, assessed, and supported families in.the Williamsburg/James City County area who
required safety intervention regarding abuse and/or neglect. Recognized for Stewardship FY 2016.

•  Received and evaluated incoming reports to CPS, adult protective services (APS), and foster care
using the SDM model.

•  Engaged in the investigative process for APS and CPS through interviewing and home visits;
participated in weekly unit meetings to determine abuse/neglect findings.

•  Developed, facilitated, and evaluated training programs for resource/foster parents.

•  Coordinated Lion's Club Sight and Hearing Program.

• Managed adoption discloser cases and created agency continuity manual.

•  Provided direct and ongoing services to clients; assisted in the formation of service objectives and
development of service plans; maintained knowledge of community resources and engaged in
referral process for clients; and maintained case records including reports, service plans, efforts,

and supporting materials related to each case.

•  Served as board member on county-wide Service Coordination and Assessment Network

committee.

ADVOCACY/CASE MANAGEMENT

2013-2016

Avalon: Center for Women and Children, VA
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•  Provided direct case management and supervision to clients receiving services through Avalon's

emergency shelter, transitional housing, and rapid rehousing programs. Supervised training

program for all newly hired employees. Acknowledged as Employee of the Third Quarter FY 2015.

•  Published community needs assessment for 2014 through SWOT analysis project.

•  Created and facilitated job readiness workshops for shelter residents.

•  Provided all training for new hire advocates, case managers, and volunteers.

• Oversaw Campus REACH children's program.

•  Established case management record system and workload management system.

•  Participated in weekly staff case management meetings with coordinators and directors to
collaborate and explore options for clients working toward self-sufficiency and healing.

•  Conducted client needs assessments, provided necessary referrals, and served as liaison between

clients and community service providers.

•  Responded to victims of sexual violence at local hospitals to provide advocacy support and crisis

intervention; provided crisis intervention to homeless clients in residence at the emergency shelter.

•  Provided budgeting and support to clients in need of financial guidance and payment

arrangements.

• Answered Avalon's 24-hour helpline to provide support and resources for victims and homeless

families seeking shelter

MARKETING AND OUTREACH

2012-2014

The College of William and Mary Center for Student Diversity, VA

•  Piloted programs within Division of Student Affairs that provide academic, social, and transitional

support for underserved and underrepresented groups to ensure a safe, affirming, and nurturing

environment for William & Mary students.and staff.

•  Collaborated with director to develop the Diversity Peer Educator program; facilitated training for
staff and all incoming undergraduate freshmen.

•  Helped develop and execute Safe Zone training program; program established network of allies for

LGBTQIA* students.

•  Proactively analyzed campus education programs and survey data; presented findings to center

directors.



EVIDENT CHANGE

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Annual Salary
Salary Amount Paid
■from this Contract

Catherine Paradisin Program Specialist $77,745 $22,158
Emerson Ives Senior Program Specialist $95,000 $23,300

*
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Lori A. Wcsvcr

loterlm Comminioner

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

1» PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 ]-80D•8S^3345 Ext 4451

Fax; 603-271-4729 TOD AccesiM-800-735-2964 tww.<lhh».!ih.Bov

15

December 23. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Evident Change
(Vendor 164062), Madison. Wl. to continue providing Structured Decision Making ® services, by
Increasing the price limitation by $325,000 from $652,925 to $977,925 and by extending the
completion date from June 30. 2023 to June 30. 2025, effective July 1. 2023 or upon Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 10, 2019, item #14
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 30, 2021. item #29.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421010-29570000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PRETECTION. CHILD PROTECTION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102/500731
Contract for

Prog Svc
4210578

$258,000 $0 $258,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$160,100 $0 $160,100

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$22,700 $0 $22,700

2023 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$212,125 $0 $212,125

2024 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$0 $125,000 $125,000

2025 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$0 $200,000 $200,000

The Department of Health and Human Services' MUsion is to join cvmmunities and families
in providing opportunities for cUieens to achieve health and independence.
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2024 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$0 $125,000 $125,000

2025 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
4210578

$0 $200,000 $200,000

Total $652,826 $325,000 $977,925

EXPLANATION

This request is Solo Source because MOP 150 requires all amerKlments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Additionally. The Department
is seeking to extend the contract beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options
available. The Contractor has developed and owns all intellectual property rights, title, and
interest, including copyrights, to Structured Decision Making. As such; the Depaftrrient has
determined to continue to use these tools as the Contractor provides six (6) sets "of evidence
informed tools to guide numerous decision points for intake, assessment and family service.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to add the Structured Decision
Making ® services into the Comprehensive Child Welfare Information System (CCWIS) system.
The SDM® consists of various components, including but not limited to screening criteria, safety
and risk assessment, policies, procedures, manuals and software certrfication. The proprietary
model assesses criteria for safety and risk in order to guide decision-making at key polrtts when
vwrking with families with whom child abuse and/or neglect have been alleged or identifiod.

Approximately 66,319 individuals will be served annually through 9,869 assessments and
1,605 family services cases based on 2020 data.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department's ability to
improve child safety and reduce child abuse and neglect. Including fatalities, may be significantly
diminished.

Area served: Statewide.
Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735.2964

mvw.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulct

Commissioner

January 26,2023

Lori A. Weaver, Interim Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of Ncw'Hampshire
129"PIeasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Interim Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notincaiicn that the Department of Information Technology
(DolT) has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with
Evident Change as described below and referenced as DolT No. 20I9-098B.

This is a request to amend the current contract with Evident Change for continued Structured
Decision Making © services. The vendor-developed Structured Decision Making ® (SDM®),
system is a case management decision-making protocolTor child protective services.

There price limitation will increase by 5325,000 from 5652,925 to $977,925 and the
completion date will extend to June 30, 2025, effective July .1, 2023 or upon Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Coulei

DG/ik

DolT #2019-0988

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Structured Decision Making contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services and Evident Change.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
■ on 7/10/2019, (Item #14), as amended on 6/30/2021, (Item #29). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as ahiended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2025

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:.

$977,925

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore. Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1. Amendment #1 Price and Payment Schedule, by replacing it in its entirety with
Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2 Price and Payment Schedule, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

M.Evident Change

A-S-l .3 Contractor Initials
2/1/2023

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Dale-
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AH terms and conditions of ttie Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In fujl force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023. or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/2/2023

Date

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.
ftibsam,

Title: Director

2/1/2023

Date

Evident Change

—DMuSlgntdbtr:

Title: chief Legal & operating officer

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF^2-SDMNC-01-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 ol 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'DcMSIgn*4br

2/24/2023

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and ̂ ecutive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Evident Change A-S-1.2

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A02

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making €) Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2, Price and Payment Schedule

Table 1 - State Fiscal Years 2020. 2021. 2022, and 2023

Deliverable Description Deliverable Due Date Firm Fixed Price

Intake tools Pre-lmplementatlon
IRR and Field Testing & final
tools

August 31, 2019 $17,800

Project start-up activities September 30, 2019 $25,400

SOM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: policy review

■October 31, 2019 $17,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: data collection

October 31, 2019 $27,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: decision-point
data reviews

December 31, $19,100

Intake tools curriculum
development, training and
coaching

January 31, 2021 $30,900

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning:
recommendation meeting

January 31, 2020 $20,400

Preliminary risk assessment
analysis

February 28. 2020 $20,000

Risk assessment validation
study

April "30, 2020 $60,000

Intake tools post-implementation
case review

May 30. 2022 $22,700

Tool customization (safety and-
risk assessments)

May 30. 2021 $39,550

Tool customization (in-home risk
review and reunification risk
review assessments)

May 30, 2021 $39,550

Inter-rater Reliability Testing
(Assessment tools)

June 30, 2020 $29,000

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF^2-SOMNC-0.1 -A02

Exhibit 8-1. Amendment tt2

Page 1 of 3

pi
Contmctor Initials ^

Date
2/1/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2„ Price and Payment Schedule

Field test/tool finalization

(Assessment tools)
June 30, 2020 $21,100

Project management June 30, 2023 $12,000

Subtotal $402,700

.

Table 2 - State Fiscal Years 2021, 2022 and 2023

Deliverable Description Deliverable Due Date Firrh Fixed Price

Inter-rater reliability testing
(Family Service tools)

August 31, 2020 $29,000'

Field test/tool finalization

(Family Service tools)
October 31.2020 $21,100

Training curriculum
•development

November 30. 2022 $66,400

Conducting training (train-the-
trainer model)

June 30, 2023 $60,600

Supervisor training/coaching
session

■June 30, 2023 $11,125

Project management June 30, 2023 $12,000

SDM certificalion June 30, 2023 $50,000

Subtotal $250,225

Evident Change

SS-2020-OCYF452-SOMNC-01-A02

Exhibit B-1. Amendment U2

Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date

M

2/1/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2, Price and Payment Schedule

Table 3 - State Fiscal Year 2024

Deliverable Description
Deliyerabie Due Date Firm Fixed Price

Intake Case Review- 6/30/25 $13,500

Assessment & Family Services
Case Review Tool

Development •

6/30/25 $27,000

Manual Updates . 6/30/25 $22,500

Project Managernent 6/30/25 $12,000

SDM Certification (5 tools) 6/30/25 ■  •• $50,000

Subtotal $125,000

Table 4 - State Fiscal Year 2025 (Ju|y 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025)

Deliverable Description
Deliverable Due Date Firm Fixed Price

Intake Training & Coaching 6/30/25 $20,000

Assessment and Family

Seivices Trainirig for Trainers

6/30/25 $65,000

Assessment and Family
Services Supervisor Training/
Coaching Sessions

6/30/25 $50,000

(four sessions)

Assessment & Family Services

Case Review

6/30/25 - $50,000

Project Management 6/30/25 $15,000

Subtotal $200,000

- Total $977,925

Evident Change

SS-2020-DCYF-02-SDMNC-01-A02

Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2

Page 3 of 3

Contractor Initials

kf.

Date
2/1/2023
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Lori A. Shlblncne
CommUsioiicr

Joiepb E. Rlbsam, Jr.
Oirtctor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

omSION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3Sd7
ti03-27l^5l I-800-852-334S EiL 4451

Fei: 603.271^729 TDD Access; l-S00.73S.2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 10, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Hpiise
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the'Departmentof Health and Human Services. Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend an existing contract with Evident Change (formerly known as National Council
on Crime and Delinquency (NCCD) Children's Research Center (CRC), ^C#164062), Oakland.
CA to continue providing Striidured Decision Making ® services, by exercising a contract renewal
option by extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to June 30. 2023 effective June 30.
2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later with no change to the price
limitation of $652,925. 100% General Funds

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 10. 2019, item #14.
Furids are available in the following account for State Fiscal 2021. and are anticipated .to

be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.
05-95^2-421010-29670000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERViCES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES, CHILD
PRETECnON. CHILD PROtECTION

State
Fiscal
Year

Class (
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

' Revised
Budget.

2020 102/500731
Contract for

Prog Svc
4210578

$402,700 ($144,700) $258,000

.2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 4210578
$250,225 ($90,125) $160,100

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 4210578
SO $22,700 $22,700

2023 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 4210578
$0 $212,125 $212,125

Total $652,925 $0 $652,925

TJie Oepartmtnt of Heellh and Human Struicts' Minion is to Join {ommiinilies and fomilia
in providing opporiuniiitt fortitixent io ochitve health and independtnee.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end (he Honoreble Council

Page 2 o(.2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to incorporate the Structured Decision Making ® services
Into the new Comprehensive Child Welfare Information System (CCWIS) system, which Is
expected to be In place no earlier than June 30.2023. This amendment allows the Contractor to:
1) integrate the SDM® topis into the new CCWIS contract, 2) train staff In Implementing the tools
one (1) month prior to the CCWIS roll out, and 3) provide post implementation support that
includes, but is not limited to, coritinuous quality improvement (CQI) arKi supervisory coaching.
Additionalfy, the Contractor developed and owns all intellectual property rights, title, and Interest,
including copyrights, in Structured Decision Making ® (SDM®), which Is a case mariagement
decision-making protocol for child protective services.

The SDM® consists of various components, including but not limited to screening criteria,
sMety and risk assessment, policies, procedures, manuals and software certification. The
proprietary model assesses criteria Tor safety and risk in order to guide decision-making at key
points when working with families with whom child abuse and/or neglect have been alleged or
identified. The Contractor and the Department will continue to work collaboratively to update,
customize, and implement the SDM® intake assessment, investigation assessment, and ongoing
assessments to assist the Department with enhancing Its child welfare system through the use of
evidence-based tools. Updating child protection practices will better meet the needs of children,
youth, and families, statewide. As a result of this work, the Department will incorporate policy
changes to streamline the intake and assessment processes and to ensure staff and resources
are being focused on the highest risk families.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 5. Duration of Agreement, of the
original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) addilional.
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its option to renew
services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department's ability to
Improve (?hild safety and reduce child abuse and neglect, including fatalities, may be-significantly
diminished.

Area served: Statewide

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hnzcn Dr., Concord, NH 03301 ^
Fax: 603-27M516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 . [

u'wvv.nh.gov/dolt . ;

Denis Goulet

Commissioner
>
\

June 1 1,2021 ' • i

Lorl A. Shibincuc, Commissioner
Dcpartmcnl of Hcallh and Human Services
Siaic ofNcw Hampsliirc
129 Pleasant Sircct

Concord. NM 03301 . '

Dear Commissioner Shibint'Uc:

This letter represents foniial noiificaiion that the Depar;lmcni of Infbhnation Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract with the National Council on Crime
and Delinquency (NCCD) Children's Research Center (CRC) as described below and referenced as DolT
NO.2019-09SA.

This is a request to amend the current contract with NCCD for continued Structured Decision
Making® services by exercising a contract renewal option for an additional two years. The vendor
develop Structured Decision Making ® (SDM®) system is a case management decision-making
protocol for child protective services.

There.is no change to the Price Limitation of $652,925.00. This amendment shall become
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through' Jtine 30,2023.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulei I
(  j

DG/ik ■ ;
DolT#20l9-09SA " • •

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"/noovot/ve Technofogics Todoy (or New Hampshire's Tomorroiv"



Docusign Envelope ID; 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-876F-46B5E12C97DC t

DocuSign Envelope ID: EEEEOl7C-2622-4784-9C57-740027BB628e

DocuSign Envelope ID: 32E»7>F.260M531-8F4&'16ESBE99FE1D

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendmenl to the Slruclured Decision Making Sen/ices contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department") and Evident Change
(formerly known as the National Council on Crime and Delinquency (NCCD) Children's Research Center
(CRC)) ("the Contractor").

^  WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreemenl'(lhe "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 10, 2019, (Item #14). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit A. Scope of Services,
Section 5, Duration of Agreement. Amendments and Extension', Subsection 5.2, Modification and
Extension, the Contract may t)e amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Modify P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractors Name, to read:

Evident Change

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023

t  . 3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.2, to read:

1.2. . For the purposes of this Agreement, The Department has identified Evident Change as a
■  ■ . ■ Contractor, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0, et seq.

'  4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services Section 2. Scope of Services, Subsection 2.3., to read:

2.3. The Department agrees to assign all its rights, title, and interest in any modifications or
additions to the SDM® that it authors, solely or with Evident Change, to Evident Change
for no .additional consideration. The Contractor will grant back to the Department a
nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide, fully paid-up license to use .such modincations or
additions for its internal purposes with no subllcensing rights.

•  5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4. Subsection 4.4. Paragraph 4.4.2., to read:

4.4.2. The exact numljer of records is unknown. Due to the nature of this effort, the approximate
number of records-involved Is.unknown. The Department agrees to provide remote access
to CCWIS/SACWIS for all record types including referrals, assessments and cases. The
Contractor shall have direct access to SDM® tools through these record types in
CCWIS/SACWIS.

6. Modify .Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. Subsection 3.1. to
read:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices within twenty (20) days from the dale in Section 3.2.3
below for payment of accepted Deliverables according to the Price and Payment Schedule
in Exhibit B-1 Amendmenl #1.

7. Delete Exhibit B-1, Price and Payment Schedule^ and replace with Exhibit B-l, Amendment #1,
Price and Payment Schedule.

. tP
Evident Change Amendmenl Conlractof Initials

6/2/2021
SS-202C-DCYF-02-SOMNC-0VA01 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective-June 30. 2021 or upon the.dale-of Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire •
Department of Health and Human Services

6/8/2021

Dale Name:

Title:

^Oocutlgnvtf by;

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.

' Joseph E. Ribsam. Jr.

Director

6/2/2021

Date

Evident Change
by:

I  (^:. f&Ai
-A—intTiforttam , .

Name' Kathenne h. Park
Title: ceo

Evident Change

SS-2020-OCYF^2-SDMNC-01-A01

Amendmenl //I
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OfVhE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/9/2021 .["rfe".. ■
Date ■ Name:°''^'*"at^'erine Pinos

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of.
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Evident Change Amendn^enl if )
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment ̂1; Price and Payment Schedule

State Fiscal Year 2020;

Governor and Executive

Council Approval through
June 30, 2020

Deliverable Description
Deliverable Due Date Firm Fixed Price

s

Intake tools Pre-lmplenientation
IRR and Field Testing & final
tools

August 31.2019 - completed $17,800

Project starl-up activities September 30, 2019 - .
completed

$25,400

SDM fidelity review &'pre-
project planning: policy review

October 31. 2019-

completed
$17,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: data collection

October 31. 2019 -

completed

$27,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning; .decision-point
data reviews

December 31, 2019 -

completed
$19,100

Intake tools curriculum

development, training and
coaching

January 31,. 2021 $30,900

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning:
recommendation meeting

January 31, 2020 -
completed

$20,400

Preliminary risk assessment
analysis

February 28, 2020 -
completed

$20,000

Risk assessment validation

study
April 30. 2020 - completed $60,000

Intake tools post-implementation
case review

May 30. 2022 $22,700

Tool customization (safety and
risk assessments)

May 30, 2021 - completed $39,550

Tool customlMtion (in-home risk
review and reunification risk

review assessments)

May 30. 2021 - completed $39,550

GviOerx Change

SS-2020 0CYF-02-SOMNC-01.A01

CKhtbit.S'i- AmenOmenl 01

Pogc 1 of 2

Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Price and Payment Schedule

Inter-rater Reliability Testing
(Assessment tools)

June 30. 2020 - completed $29,000

Field test/tool finalizalion

(Assessment tools)
June 30, 2020 - completed ■  $21,100

Project management June 30, 2023 - completed $12,000

. Subtotal $402,700

State Fiscal Year 2021:

Governor and Executive

Council Approval through
June 30, 2021

Deliverable Description Deliverable Due Date Firm Fixed Price

Inter-rater reliability testing
(Family Service tools) ■

August 31, 2020 - completed $29,000

Field lest/loo! finalization
(Family Service tools)

October 31, 2020-

completed
$21,100

Training curriculum
■ development

November 30, 2022 $66,400

Conducting training (train-the-
trainer model) <

June 30. 2023 $60,600

Supervisor training/coaching
session

June 30, 2023 $11,125

Project management June 30. 2023 $12,000 .

SDM cerlification June 30, 2023 S50.000

SubTolal $250,225

Total $652,925

Evideni Change

SS-202(H)CYF-02-SDMNC-01-A01

Exhvbil B-1. AmenOmeni 01

Page 2 o(2
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Jeffrey A. Meyeri
Cemmlttlanrr

Jftepk E. Rlbiam, Jr.
DIrrccer

JUN24'19 rtfil0:04 DftS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON FOR CHILDREN. YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH0330 I08S7
.  603-27M451 I-800-852-334S Cxi. 4451

Fij;603 27l-4729 TDOAtcm: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhi.nh.gov

June 13. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and Ihe Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

■  Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to enter into a sole source agreement with the National Council on Crime and Delinquency
(NCCD) Children's Research Center (CRC), (Vendor # TBD). 426 S. Yellowstone Drive, Madison. Wl
53719, to provide Structured Decision Making ©services in an amount not to,exceed $652,925, effective
upon the date of Governor and Executive, Council approval, through June 30.2021.100% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Year (s) 2020 and
2021.

05-95-42- Actlvity#421010- Accounting Unit #29570000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES. CHILD
PROTECTION. CHILD PROTECTION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102/500731
Contracts for Program

Services'

4210578 $402,700

2021 102/500731 Conlracts for Program
Sendees

.  4210578 $250,225

TOTAL $652,925

EXPLANATION

This request is for a sole source agreement because the Contractor has developed and owns all
intellectual properly rights, title, and interest. Including copyrights. In Structured Decision Making ©
(SDM®). SDM® is a case management declslori-making protocol for child protective services. These
tools consists of various actuarial tools, including but not limited to Intake Screen In Criteria. Intake
Response Priority. Assessment Safety Assessments, Assessment Risk Assessment. Family Service In-
home Risk Review and Family Service Reunification Risk Review. The National Council on Crime and
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Delinquency will wortt with the Department's Division for Children. Youth and Families to customize these •
■  tools for use in New Hampshire and will create a manual to support the tools and certify the Division's

automated versions of the tools. This proprietary model assesses for safety and risk and guides decision-
making at key points during work with families with whom child abuse and/or neglect have been alleged
or identified. * •

Through an existing project agreement with the Department, the Conlractor develo^d a New ■
Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SDM® Management Report that outlines baseline SOM®
fidelity indicators, which.are a measure of adherence to the implementation guidelines for SDM®. The
initial funding for this project, which was provided by Casey Family Programs. Inc.. is being discontinued.
This sole source agreement will allow the Department to provide funding to continue this Important project
to serve New Hampshire's vulnerable children and youth who are most at risk of abuse and/or neglect.

Under this Agreement, the Conlractor and the Department will continue to work collaboratlvely to
update, customize, arid implemeril the SDM® intake, assessment and family service tools, to assist the
Department in enhancing its child welfare system through (he utilization of evidence-based tools.
Updating child protection practices will belter meet the needs of childrer>. youth, and families In New
Hampshire. Utilizing these updated tools will support decisions made a! key points during the intake,
assessment and family service process in order to improve safety for children and youth and provide
services (o the most at risk families. As .a result of this work, the Department will incorporate policy
changes lo'slreamline the iniake and assessment processes and to ensure staff and resources are being
.focused on the highest risk families.

In recent years, the Department has been the subject of several external audits/reviews. Both
the Quality Assurance Review of OCYF. released in December of 2016. and the Child and Family
Services Review, conducted in 2018-, found the Department needs to improve in Its assessments and
managing of safety and risk. Currently, data shows that high or very high families are identified at the
intake level, but so are low and moderate risk families. This makes sense, as intake staff are currently
unable to obtain all information necessary to accurately assess for risk. However, during assessments,
high and very high families are more often receiving services through Court and Voluntary cases (with
highest risk families most likefy to require court proceedings). This Is a trend thai is best case practice,
but based oh Department data, there is still room for improvement. Updating the SOM® tools will
significantly improve this, especially because these changes will be more closely tied to policy changes
regarding decision'making for servicing families.

The Department will monilor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using (he following performance measures:

•  The services provided by the.Contractor shall meet the Recommendation 19 from the
Quality Assurance Review of DCYF that was made final in 2016, to re-conceptualize the
process of identifying safely threats and risks of harm associated with incoming reports of

• mailreatment.

•  The Contractor shall assist the Department in meeting mandates for the Program
Improvement Plan from the Child arid Family Services Review, which Identmes the need
for improved assessment'and management of the safety and risk for children and youth.
It mandates for Improvement are not met. the Department Is subject to financial penalties.
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•  The Contractor's work in this agreement will satisfy the safety and risk assessment
objective set forth in the Department's Division of Child and Family Services Plan (or '5-
Year Plan").

As referenced in Exhibit A of this contract, the Department has the option to extend contracl
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval ofihe Governor and Executive Council.

-  Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's ability

16 improve child safety and reduce child abuse and neglect, Including-fatalities, will be signincanliy
diminished.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

In the event that the General. Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program,

R^pectfully submitted.

Iffrey A. Meyers
Jommissioner

The Deportment of Health and Hiimon Seruicct' Missiun in tv jvin coinmunllits Oii<J fotuiliet
in providing opporlunitiet for ciiirent (o oehievc heollh ond independence.,
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Subject; SS.202Q-DCYF4)2.SDMNC Stfuciured Decision Making Serviaj
FORM NUMBER P07(venlon S/8/I$)

Notice: This dgreement end Ml of its ettachmentssholl become'public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for epprovel. Any information that is private, confideniia! or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contrect.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Marrtc
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 -State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 033010857

1.3 Contractor Name
National Courtcil on Crime and Delinquency (NCCO) Children's-
Research Center (CRC)

1.4 Contractor Address

426 S. Ycllowsionc Drive. Madison. Wl 53719

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

800-306-6223

1.6 Account Number

05-095-O42.42l0l0-29570(X)0

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 202)

1.8 Price Limitation

5652,925

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-27I-963I

l.ll Contractor Si atu 1.12 Name and Tiilc of Contractor Signatory

C£n
1.13 Aclinowledgemcnl: Stateof County ofpon^

On . before the undcrsigncdofTicer, personally appeared the person identified in blcclt 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven tobe the person wtosc name is signed in block I. I I. and acknowledged that s/hc executed this document in the capacity
•indiccted in block 1.12. .
I?l3r} Signature of Notary Pobli(yOiOuSfi«ofthc Feacc

1. 13.2 Name entitle of Nol/ry or Justice of the Peace

11.14 State A ure

1.16 Approve

By:

Jate:

. 1 and Title oTStaic Agency Signatory

Personnel (ifexplicable) \partmenVbf Administration, Division ofPersonnel (ifexplicable)

Director. On;

1.17 Approval, by tl)C Anorncy Gencraj^(Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

On:

1.18 Approval by the ̂ ycrnor and Executive Council fi/applicable)

By; 0"-

Page I or4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF COf^RACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stele of New Hampshire, acting
through (he agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
controctor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and (he Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference .
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATEyCOMPLETlON OF; SERVICES.
3; I Notwithsinrtding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to (he approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, (hit AgrMmenl.'and ell obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall become effcciive on the date ilic Governor.
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block MS, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efTcctive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in.block
1.14 ("EfTcctive Date").
3.2 Ifthe Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by (he Contractor prior
to the EfTcctive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become efTective, the State shall have no liability to the

■ COnlroclor, including without limtiaiion. any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any cosis incu^d or Services performed.
Contractor must complete alt Services by the Completion Date
specified in block (.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to (he
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereurKler. arc
contingent upon the ayBilabiliiy and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if evc"r)ond shall
have (he right lo terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICEfPRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the conlract price shall be the
only and (Ik complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of v^aicvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and (he complete
compensation to (he Contracior for.thc Services. The State
shall hive no liability to the Contractor other than (he conlract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable lo the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H, RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. compliance by CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connccttor) with the performance ofihe Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, la^, regulations,
and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey .
information to (he Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.'
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin end will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Stales, the Contracior shall comply with ail the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guideline's
as the Stale ofNcw Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of ihe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
wnnanis that all personnel engaged in the Serviccs shall be
qualified lo perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed end otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor sholi not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or Other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined cfTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or orficial. who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of (hjj

of 4

Conlracior Initials'

Dale
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Agreemeni. Thi$ provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

.7.3 The Cootrtcting OfTicer specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's repfeswiative. In the event
ofany dispute concerning the intefpreiation of this Agreement,
the Contfacting Officer's.decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
g. I Any one or. more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default.hereunder
("Event of Default");
B.I.I failure to perform (he Services saiitfaclorily or on
schedule;

g.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any Other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the rrolice; and if the Event,of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afier giving the Conlracior'notice of termination;
8:2.2 give the Cbntr'actor a written notice specifymg
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement aird ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Coniractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may.owc to
the Coniractor any damages the Stale suffers,by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue arry of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access;/confidentialitv/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean all
infornsation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repons,
files, formultte, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
ell whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agrecmtnl, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confideniialityofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91* A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. termination. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reatson other than the completion of the
Services, (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fificen (15) days after the date of
icrminaiion, a report ("Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
nwocr, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those ofany Final Report
described in the attached EXWBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performoncc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects en independent contractor, and >s neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or memben shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emolumertts provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any'
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Stale, None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior svrinen
notice ond consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify ond hold harmless the State.-its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any end all claims,
liabilities or penalties asscncd against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissiorss of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.'

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Coniroccof shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against oU
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl.OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and J2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all
properly subject to subpangraph 9.2 herein, in an amount r\oi
less Ihan 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described ir^ subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy ,forms and endorsements opproved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire."
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14.3 The Coniractor shall Tumish to the Conrrscting OfHcer
identiiied in block 1.9. or his or her successor, o cehir<csie(s)
of insurance for-ell insurance required under (his Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish lo ihe Comraciing Officer
Ideniined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceriifi€a(c(s) of
insurance for all renewal($) of Insurance required under this
Agreement rw later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificatefs) of
insurance artd any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificalefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of caneetiaiion or modiriCBtion of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
l5.1.By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants (hat the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA.chapicf 281-A
("Workers' Cottpensatiori").
IS.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
•furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in (he
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A end any
applicBble rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

Id. WAIVER QF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard lo that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No e.xpress
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been diily delivered or given at the
time of mailing by cenified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the ponies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under Ihe circumstances pursuant to
State low, rule or policy;

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon end
inures to the benefit of the parlies end Iheir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express (heir mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of ony party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend (o
benefit any third.parties and this Agreement shall not be
consirued.to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain; modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretaiion, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in ihe artached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event anyoflKe provisionsof
this Agreement ore-held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Paged of 4
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
descriPed herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities, and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. - For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the National Council
on Crime and Delinquency Children's Research Center as a Contractor, in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.3. This Agreement terminates and supersedes all existing project agreements and data
. sharing agreements between the parties regarding Structured Decision flaking®.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor has developed and owns all intellectual property rights, title, and
interest, Including copyrights, in Structured Decision Making ® (SDM®), a case
•management decision-making protocol for child protective services, adult protective
services, family prevention services, and substitute care providers consisting of various

• components, including but not limited to screening criteria, risk assessment, policies,
procedures, manuals and software. This proprietary model assesses for safety and
risk and guides decision-making at key points during work with families Nviih whom child
abuse and/or neglecl have been alleged/identified.

2.2. The Contractor hereby grants to the Department a nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide,
fully paid-up license (p reproduce, install, and display SDM® for its internal purposes,
with no suthlicensing rights.

2.3. The Department agrees to assign all Its rights, title, and interest in any modincalions or'
additions to SDM® that it authors, solely or with NCCO. to NCCO for no additional
consideration. The Contractor will grant back to the Department a nonexclusive,
perpetual, worldwide, fully paid-up license to use such modifications or additions, for its
internal purposes with no sublicensing rights.

2.4. Through an existing project agreement with the Department, the Contractor developed
a New Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SDM® Management Report that
outlines baseline SDM® fidelity indicators, which are a measure of adherence to the
implementation guidelines for SDM.

I

2.5. Under this Agreement., the Contractor shall update, customize, and implement the
SDM® intake,, investigation, and family service assessment tools to assist the

•  Department in enhancing its child welfare system.

Thd NstionsI Couno! on Cnmo ond Delinquoncy
ChiWren'j Research Center Exhibit A Contr^or Inlilals
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2.6. The Contractor shall finalize the development of the SDM® Intake tools, specificaify the
Screen In Criteria tool and the Response Priority tool, which will- follow through with

v work completed to date on these tools through the existing Agreement between the
Department and the Contractor.

2.7. The Contractor shall consult during the automation of the SDM® intake tools into the
new CCWIS electronic dais system. To do this the Contractor will conduct
.implementation testing of the tools within the CCWIS system, provide feedback on its
functionality, and certify it as "SOM system compliant" once the tools are functioning as
intended.

2.8. the Contractor shall develop curriculum, conduct training, and provide ongoing
coaching of staff relative to the use of the SDM® Intake tools.

2.9. The Contractor shall conduct a case review six (6) months after Implementation in order
to determine If the SOM® Intake tools are being used correctly and if quality of
documentation by Intake' staff has improved. Results will be provided to the
Department through a field-test evaluation memo,

2.10. The Contractor shall update SOM® assessment and family services SDM® tools
regarding risk and safely assessment, reunification risk and in^home risk assessment
tools used by the Department in order to:

2.10.1. Provide structured information concerning the danger of immediate harm
to/maltreatment of a child.

2.10.2. Guide and support decisions about whether a child may remain in the
home with no intervention, may remain in the home with a safe^ plan in
place, or must be protectively placed.

2.10.3. Identify the risk of future maltreatment. In order to guide decisions around
the types of activities required to close an assessment. Identify when
referrals to outside agencies should be made or if a case should be
opened on the family.

2.10.4. Determine whether a case should remain open and, if so. at what level or
intensity of services.

2.10.5. Guide and support decisions about whether a child may be reunified with
aparent.

2.11. The Contractor shall update SOM® assessment and family services tools. Specifically,
the Contractor shall:

'2.11.1. Conduct project start-up activities including facilitating a klckofl meeting
and other meetings with Department stakeholders. These may be in-
person or via web-based meetings.

2.11.2. Complete an SDM® Fidelity Review of how current tools are utilized.
This review will include reviewing Department policies, participating ii^

T^o Notional Council on Crime and Delinquency
ChiWren'5 Research Center Exhibit A Conlractof Initials
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data collection activities, conducting key informant interviews, and
conducting a decision-point data review. The results will be shared In a
memo and through a meeting with Department staff.

2.11.3. Conduct a preliminary risk assessment implementation analysis to
determine if enough data is available to conduct a-risk assessment -
validation study. If the results are favorable, the Contractor shall complete
a risk assessment validation study to evaluate the Department's current
practices.

2.11.4. Customize the SDM® tools including the Safety Assessmerit and Risk
Assessment. This vwll be done through partnering with Department staff
over several workgroup sessions, both in person or via web-based
meetings.

2.11.5. Conduct pre-implementation inter-rater reliability testing and coach
Department staff on field testing and evaluate the results, which will
Inform the Hnal draft of the tools.

2.11.6. Deliver a final Policy and Procedure manual to Ihe Department that
details the policy, procedures, assessment instrument, and definitions for
the Department's DCYF assessments.

2.11.7. The Contractor will consult during the automation of the SDM®
assessment tools into the new CCWIS electronic data system. To do this
the Contractor will conduct implementation testing of the tools within the

• CCWIS system, provide feedback on its functionality, and certify it as
"SDM system compliant" once the tools are functioning as intended.

2.11.8. The Contractor shall develop curriculum, conduct training, and provide
ongoing coaching of staff relative to the use of the tools. Training shall be
primarily in the form of direct training for supen/isors and a train-the-'
trainer model for field staff. It may include direct observation and
coaching of staff and supervisors, especially around discussions of the
SDM® tools during supen/ision.

2.12. The Contractor shall update SDM® family services tools. -Specifically, the Contractor
shall;

2.12.1. Complete an SDM® Fidelity Review of how current tools are utilized.
This review will include reviewing Department policy, participating In data
collection/evaluation activities, conducting key informant interviews, and
conducting a decision-point data review. The results vyill be shared In a
memo and through a meeting with Department staff.

2.12.2. Customize the SDM® tools includlrig the In Home Risk Review and
Reunification Risk Review tools. This will be done through partnering
with Department .staff over several workgroup sessions, both In person or
via web-based meetings.

2.12.3. Conduct pre-implemeolalion inter-rater reliability and coach Department
staff on field testing and evaluate the results, which will inform the final
draft of the tools.

The Nalional Council on Crioio and Oalinquancy
CWIdfon's Research Cenlor Exhibit A Conlroclor tnitiat
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2.12.4. Deliver a final Policy and Procedure manual to the Department that
details the policy, procedures, assessrhent Instrument, and definitions for
the Department's OCYF assessments.

2.12.5. The Contractor will consult during the automation of the SDM®
assessment toots into the new CCWIS electronic data system. To do this

the Contractor will conduct implementation testing of the toots within the
CCWIS system, provide feedback on Its functionality, and certify it as
'SDM system compliant' once the tools are functioning as intended.

2.12.6. The Contractor shall develop curricolum, conduct training, and provide
ongoing coaching of staff relative to the use of the tools. Training shall be
primarily in the form of-direct training for supervisors and a Irain-the-
trainer model tor field staff. It may include direct observation and
coaching of staff and supervisors;.especially around discussions of the
SDM® tools during supervision.

2.13. The Contractor may conduct a data extract review annually (for the length of this
contract), following Implementation in order to determine if the SDM® assessment and
family services tools are being used correctly and If quality' of documentation by staff
has improved. The Department may specify whether the Department may be named
in any subsequent published research or If the name of the Department must be
protected.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide project management and Implementalion support, to
Include developing a concrete work-plan for the work to develop the assessment and
family services tools, conducting webinars for staff, and providing regular phone
support during and after implementation of the SDM® intake, assessment and family
services tools for Department staff. The Contractor shall also be available to the
Department staff trainers by phone, webinar, and email to clarify content and answer
questions.

2.15. The Department agrees to provide access to SACWIS (BridgesyCCWIS (which will be
known as Granite Families once the system is updated) to eriable the Contractor to

•  complete the terms of this Agreement. The Department agrees access to the
Brldges/SACWlS/CCWlS system will likewise be made available so case reads can be
conducted al the Intake, assessment and family service level regarding the use of
SDM®. This entails having to read the entirety of these records. It is also necessary
for the SDM® tools to be ceriifjed as 'SDM system compliant."

2.16. The Department agrees to provide Observation of Child Protective Service Workers
and Child Protection Supervisors In the process of their work with families (for intake,
assessment, family service, and supervisory capacity).

2.17. The Department agrees to provide a data extract from DCYF specific to its use of Intake,
' assessment and family service SDM® tools, currently referred to as New Hampshire

Integrated Assessment. The data extracts will be utilized initially for the ̂ rpqs^f

Tbo National Council on Crimo end Osltnquoncy
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evaluating the current usage of SOM® tools to inform future tools and subsequent to
the new tools being utilized, data extracts will be utilized to assess the fidelity of Division
staffs' use of the tools.

2.10. The Contractor agrees that the confidential dala obtained from the Department ur»der
this Agreement may not be used for any other purposes that are not indicated In this
Agreement. The Contractor shall comply with,Exhibit K of this Agreement, eniitied
'OHMS Information Security Requirements.' which Is attached hereto and Incorporated
by reference herein.

2.19. The Contractor agrees to follow the Department's approval process for receiving
authorized access jlo Department systems and network access.

2.20. Each End User of the Contractor who has access to the Depanmeni's data shall
execute the End User Agreement (EUA), which Is attached hereto and'incorporated by
reference herein as Appendix A. In addition;

2.20.1. The Contractor must have lhe signed EUA referenced above for all of its
End Users on file with the Department, prior to the Department sharing .
data with User. This shall apply to any new User during the contract
period.

120.2. - The EUA must be signed and returned to the Department by the
Contractor to (rack disclosures of Department data and to ensure that the
End User only uses the Department's data and any derivative data for the
purposes provided under the terms of this Agreement. In addition, the
Contractor shall notify the Department when a User Is terminated or no
longer needs access, so that access may be terminated.

2.20.3. The User agrees to grant access to the data used by Its End Users to the
authorized representatives of the Department for inspecting to confine
compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

2.20.4. The Contractor agrees that ils End-Users shall sign and comply with all
Stale of New Hampshire Department of Information Technology (DolT)
and Department policies and procedures, including but not limited to, the
DOIT Statewide Computer Use policy and the Department's
CGWIS/SACWiS User Access and Confidentiality Agreement.

2.21. At the sole discretion of the Department, the Contractor's employees may be subject to
background checks, based on Ihe information systems accessed or types of data
provided. If requested, the Contractor shall submit the required background checks to
the Department in a timely manner.

2.22. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Inlormation In compliance with
Ihe Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accounlablliry
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Business Aswci^

Tho Nations) Council on Crime ar>d Delinquency
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Agreement (Exhibit I), which has been executed by the parties and is incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Project Management and Work Plan Summary

3.1. The Cor\traclor shall meet with the Department within thirty (30) business days of the
contract effective date for a Kick off meeting in order to. at-a minimum;

3.1.1. Determine roles and responsibilities.
3.1.2. Develop a clear and detailed work plan thai includes project deliverables

In Section 7 below, tasks to rneet the project deliverables, and clear
deadlines.

3.1.3. Define a schedule for regular check-in meetings.
3.1.4. Define a process for facilitating and tracking decisions, identifying risks,

and managing and resolving Issues.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the detailed work plan for Department -review in
accordance with Section 3.l.swllhin thirty (30) days of the kick off meeting.

3.3. The Contractor shall request permission from the Department to modify the time when
activities and deliverables are to be completed in the Work Plan.

3.4. The Contractor shall receive written permission, which request shall not be'
unreasonably denied, from the Department before modifying (he timeframes
established in (he Work Plan.

3.5. The Contractor shall complete the phases In sequential and/or concurrent order as
specified in the Work Plan.

3.6. The proposed time frames in the detailed Work Plan represent estimated schedules
based on expected contract activities. The parties reserve the right to mutually amend
the time schedule for these activities based on progression of procurement activities,
changes In law or procedure, contingencies for the Contractor upon other entities with
which the Department may contract (ex. for the new CCWIS build), and/or other
changes or circumstances.

4. Description, Use and Disclosure of Data

4.1. The Contractor agrees the data provided by the Department will be restricted to the
following uses;

4.1.1. Evaluating the current utilization of the SDM<d tools in NH in order to t>e
■ best able to make recommendations for changes to the tools. This
includes conducting a Risk Validation Study of (he current SOM® tools,

Tho National CounU) on CfVno and Dolinquoncy
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utilizing case reads, and assessing the use of the new tools for the
purpose of providing feedback for practice improvements.

4.1.2. Coaching utilization of the SDM® tools with fidelity, makifig
recommendations for practice changes includir>g streamlining intake,
assessment and family services practices, and updating SDM® tools
utilized at key decision-making points within child protection matters
including:

4.1.2.1 Observing and coaching of Child Protective Service Workers
and Child Protection Supervisors In (he process of their work
with families {during intake, assessment, family service, and
when acting in a supervisory capacity).

4.1.2.2 Coaching the Department's DCYF intake staff and staff from
Wediko, with which the Department contracts for management
of-the after-hours intakes; and

4.1.2.3 Evaluating the use of the new SDM® tools post Implementation.

4.2 The Contractor agrees that'the Department's data that is being requested is the
"minimum necessary" to carry out the slated use of the data, as defined in the Privacy
Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

4.3 The Department will provide data to the Contractor from the following systems-of
records:

4.3.2. The SACWIS {Brldges)/CCWIS client-server application system, which is
the electronic case management system utilized by the Department. This
system is being updaied and will be referred to as Granite Families upon
completion.

4.3.3 A data extract specific to its use of intake, assessment and family service
SDM® tools, currently referred to as New Hampshire Integrated -
Assessment.

4.4 Number of Records Involved and Dala Elements

4.4.2 the exact number of records is unknown. Due to the nature of this effort,
the approximate number of records involved is unknown. The Department
agrees to provide remote access to CCWIS/SACWIS for all record types
Including, referrals, assessments and cases. NCCD will have direct ■
access lo SDM® tools through these record types In CCWIS/SACWIS.

4.4.3 The exact data elements and requirements are not known at this time.
Appehdix 8. which is attached, hereto and incorporated by reference
herein, lists the data elements and data requirements to be shared. T^

Tho NaJlona) CoundJ on Crime and Delinquency , ,, .
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parties agree to work coliaboratively to further develop and refine the data
elements and requirements consistent with this Agreiemenl.t.

5. Duration of Agreement, Amendments and Extension

5.1. Effective Date: This Agreement will become effective on the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval. or July 1. 2010. whichever is later.

5.2. Modification and Extension: The parties may modify this Agreement at any time by
mutual written agreement, subject to approval of the Governor and Executive Council
as required. This Agreement may be extended for up to two (2) additional' years,
contingent upon satlsfaclory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement
of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

6. Perforrhance Measures

6.1. The services provided by the Contractor shall meet the Recommendation 19 from the
Quality Assurance Review of DCYF that was made final in 2016, to re-conceptualize
the process of identifying safety threats and risks of harm associated with incoming
reports of maltreatment.

6.2. The Contractor sha/l assist the Department in meeting mandates for the Program'
Improvement Plan from the Child at>d Family Services Review, which identifies the
need for improved assessment and managernent of the safety and risk for children and
youth. If mandates for improvement are not met, the Department is subject to financial
penalties.

6.3. In addition, the Contractor's work in this Agreement will satisfy the safety and risk
assessment objective set forth in the Department's Division of Child and Family
Services Plan (or "S-Year Plan"), which will be submitted, by the Division to the
Children's Bureau within the U.S. Administration for Children and Families In June of
2019.

7. . Project Activity Milestones and Deliverables

7.1. The estimated dales in this section, as outlined in 7.2 below, may change to coincide
with work being completed on the Department's new CCWIS build, upon agreement of
both parlies. •

7.2. The Contractor shall:

7.2.1. Provide draft SOM€> tools for the Department, including the Screen-in
Criteria'and Response Priority Tool by July 31. 2019.

12.1. Lead Department staff on pre-implementalion inter-rater reliability and
field testing with the Department of the SOM® Screen-in Criteria a

The National Council on Cnmo and Delinquency
Children"# Research Center . Exhibii A Contractor initials
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Response Priority tools: evaluate results and incorporate Into the SDM®
tools by August 31, 2019.

7.2.3. Provide the updated intake SOM® tools, inctuding the Screen-In Criteria
and Response Priority Tool by August 31. 2019.

7.2.4. Complete project start up meetings for SOM^ assessment and family
sen/ice tools by September 30, 2019.

7.2.5. Provide consultation around the automation of the tools in the

Departments CCWtS system and ultimately certify the Department's
automated SDM® intake tools by the estimated date of November 30.
2019.

7.2.6. Develop the training curriculum for SDM® intake Tools and conduct
training one rhonth prior to the release ol the new Intake Module for
CCWIS by November 30, 2019.

7.2.7. ■ Complete ongoing training and coaching of Intake staff on the use of the
tools between December 1, 2019 and January 31, 2020.

7.2.8. . Complete a policy review of assessment and family services policy to
Inform SOM® assessment and family service tools by Octot>er 31. 2019.

7!2.9. Complete key Informant interviews to inform SDM® assessment and '
family service toots by October 31, 2019.

7.2.10. Complete-a decision point data review of SOM® assessment and family
service tools by December 31. 2019.

7.2.11. Hold a meeting where recommendations for SDM® assessment and -
family service tools are shared with Department staff by January 31.
2020.

7.2.12. Complete a Preliminary Risk Assessment Implementation Analysis by
February 28. 2020.

7.2.13. Complete a Risk Assessment Validation Study to inform customization of
the SOWS* tools by April 30. 2020.

7.2.14. Complete a post-Implementation case review of the use of SDf^ Intake
tools by May 30. 2020.

7.2.15. Complete draft SOM® assessment tools, including Risk and Safety
Assessments, tools used by the Department by May 30. 2020.

The National Council on Crimo and Doliriquency
Children's Research Conlor Exhibit A ' Contractor initials
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7.2.16. Lead Department Staff on pre-implementalion inier-rater reliability of the
SOM® Risk and Safety assessment tools. Evaluate results of (his arid
incorporate into the tools by June 30, 2020.

•7.2.17. Lead Department staff on field testing of the SOM® assessment tools in
order to inform the final version of the tool and manual by June 30.
2020.

'  7.2.16. Provide consullation around the automation of (he tools In (he
Dcparlments-CCWIS sysleni and ultimately certify the SDM® assessment
Toots by September 30. 2021. . '

7.2;i9. • Create the training curriculum for SDM® Assessment Tools by October
31,2020.

7.2.20. • Conduct training one month prior to the release of the new Assessment
Module for,CCWIS by November 30. 2020. Training toinclude training
supervisors and others through a train-the-traiher format.

■  7.2.21. Create draft SDM® family services tools, including the in-home Risk
.  Review and Reunification Risk Review by June 30. 2020.

7.2.22. Lead Department staff on pre-implementation inter-rater reliability of the
SDM® family service .tools. In-home Risk Review and Reunlftcatlon Risk
Review. Evaluate results of this and incorporate into the SDM® tools by
August 31. 2020.

,7.2.23. Lead Department staff on Field Testing of the SDM® family service tools
in order to inform the final version of the tool and manual by October 31,
2020.

7.2.24. Create training curriculum for SDM® family service tools by November
30. 2020.

7.2.25. Conduct training one month prior to the release of the new family service
module for CCWIS by June 30. 2021. Training to include training
supervisors and a train-the-trainer format.

7.2.26. Provide consullation around the automation of the tools in the
Departments CCWIS system and ullimately certify the SDM® family
service tools by June 30.2021. •

7.2.27. Provide coaching sessions for Supervisors post implementation of the
SDM® tools by June 30. 2021.

Thp National Council on Crime end Oallnquency
CWkken'* Research Corilor ExWOit A Conlroclor Inhiali
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APPENDIX B

DATA ELEMENTS AND DATA REQUIREMENTS

1. Doto Elements Involved

•  Dale-of-Binh

II. Data Requirements

Data requirements necessary to complete the SOM impiemenlation report Include the following.

1. Report information"

•  Report identifier

•  Any other ideniiners required to match data (e.g., ctient IO, investigation ID)
from (his table (0 other tables

•  'Report dates (i.e., date the report was received and date it closed)

•  Screening decision (I.e., whether report was investigated)

•  Response priority of the report

•  DifTerenilal response data

2. .Investigationcharacteristics

•  Investigation identifier

•  Any other Identifiers required to link data from this table to other tables

•  investigation dates (i.e., date the investigation began and date it ended)

' • AI[eg8tion(s)

•  Alleged victim Information (person identifier for alleged victim(s),cihniciiy,

gender, and age of victim[s))

•  Perpetrator information (person identifier, relationship to alleged viciimls), age. -
and ethnicity)

•  .Substantiation decision

•  Decision to open an ongoing services case followingihvesiigalion

•  Services offercdTollowIng the investigation, such as in-home versus oul-of-homc

placement

•  Child injuries . .

•  County/districl/regional information

3. Family characteristics

•  Any unifying family identifier, if it exists in the system

•  Any other identifiers required to match data (e.g., client ID.
investigation ID) from this table to other tables

•  Demographic information for cvegivcrs and all children in the home
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Any behavior or other observations collected electronically, such as the
following (note that some of these behaviors may only be captured on the
SDM risk assessment):

Caregiver subsiance abuse problem (drugs or alcohol) (DHHS will provide abuse
negleci indicator in lieu of)
Komelessness

Physically unsafe housing

Caregiver providing irvconsisieni physical care
Caregiver mental health problems, excluding HIPPA-protccied information
Domestic violence history

Caregiver was abuscd/neglected as a child
Caregiver provides insufficient emotional/psychological support
Caregiver uses exccsslve/inapproprlalc discipline
Caregiver is domineering

Caregiver blames child or justifies maltreatment

If available, dale characteristic was idcniifted/ceascd toexisi

A. (;:hild characierisiic flags fdo not includft'HiPAA-protected datal

•  Child identifier

•  Child is medically fragile/diagnosed with failure to thrive
•  Developmental or physical disability of child
•  Positive toxicology screening al birth (DHHS will provide abuse neglect indicator in

lieu of)
•  Delinquency history
• Mental health/behavioral problem

5. Onpoing services fi.e.. nn^oine services provided bv DHHS including in home or out pf home)
•  Child idcmifier

•  Other identifiers required to link data (e.g., link to initialing Investigation) from this
table to other tobies

•  Ongoing service case start and end dates
•  Type of service (in home, out of home, permanent placement, etc.)
•  Voluntary status, if available

S. Placement characteristics
•  Child identifier ofchild removed

•  Links to initiating invcsiigailon, if available
•  Removal siarl.and end dates

•  Removal reason

•  Removal end reason

•  Placement home daic(s) and home type(s) within removal (i.e., start date, end date,
placement home type for each placement home setting client placed in during
removal)

•  Placement change reason
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7. Service refermls fe.g.. communirv fcferralsV if anv exist ,
•  Service type

•  Date of services

V  • Link to client ID, investigation ID, case ID, and/or removal ID, ifavailable

6. For each SDM assessment (meaning at) tools: Intake Screen In Criteria, Intake
Response Prioritv Level. Safety Assessment, Safety Review, Risk Assessment, In-
home Risk Review, and Reunification Risk Review) ever recorded, provide the
following

•' Assessment identiner

•. Assessment dale

•  ' Investigation and/or case identifier to link the SDM assessment
•  Clicnt(5) assessed (i.e., child and carcgivcr person ldentincrs)
•  All assessment iiem responses

•  Resulting decision
• Overrides

•  Final decision

Data should be pulled for at least 10 years prior to the sample dates. It is anticipated that FY 2016-17 or
CY 2017 sample period will be used, dejpending when the data are pulled.'

The number of records to be a 12-month sample of all referrals that had either a founded or unfounded
disposition as wed as a completed risk tool.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Slate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
•Limitation, for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% General Funds.

3. Payment for said services shall l>e made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices within twenty (20) days from the date in Section 3.2.3
below for payment of accepted Deliverables according to the Price and Payment Schedule
in Exhibit B-1 of this agreement.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure Invoices are In a format specified by the Department and .
include detailed information, as follows:

3.2.1. Identification of the completed Deliverable;

3.2.2. The Deliverable due date;

3.2.3. The Deliverable completion date; and

3.2.4. The Deliverable acceptance date.

3.3. Upon acceptance by the State of the Deliverable and a properly documented and approved
Invoice, the Slate shall make payment to the Conlractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of .the sul?mitted invoice and only if sufficient funds
are available.

4. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to State-funded programs
and services and have records available for Department review, as requested.

5. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified In Form P-37. Genera! Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dcyfinvotces@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

"  Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Children. Youth and Families
129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
In Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contraclor agrees that furiding under this
agreement may be withheld. in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal
or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the services have not
been satisfactorily completed In. accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

National CouncD on Crtma and Delinquoncy ExhIOli S Contractor Initials
ChOdrcn'a Research Canter
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Exhibit B-1, Price and Payment Schedule

State Fiscal Year. 2020:

Governor and Executl.ve Council
Approval through June 30, 2020

Dollverabte Ooocrlption Ocllverabte Due Date Firm Fixed Pdcc

Intake tools Pre-lmplementation
IRR and Field Testing & final
tools

August 31, 2019 $17,8.00

Project start-up activities September 30, 2019 $25,400

SOM fidelity review & pre-
project planning; policy review

October 31. 2019 $17,600

SDM fidelity review & pre-
project planning: data collection

October 31.2019 .$27,600

SDM fidelity review S pre-
project planning: decision-point
data reviews

December 31, 2019 $19,100

Intake tools curriculum

development, (raining and
coaching •

January 31, 2020 $30,900

SDM fidelity review & pre-
projecl planning:
fecommendationmeetlng

January 31. 2020 $20,400

Pfellminaiy risk assessment
analysis

February 28. 2020 $20.000-

Risk assessment validation

study
April 30. 2020 $60,000

Intake tools post-implementation
case review

May 30. 2020 $22,700 .

Tool customization (safety and
risk assessments)

May 30. 2020 $39,550

Tool customization (In-home risk
review and reunification risk

review assessments)

June 30, 2020 $39,550

NCCO Children's Research Center (CRC)

SS-2020-OCYF-02-SDMNC

ExhlUi B-1

Page 1 ol 2

Conuactof (ntUab

Dati



Docusign Envelope ID: 77EAAC40-34D1-4AFC-876F-46B5E12C97DC

OocuSlgn Envelope ID: EEEED17C-2622-4784.9C57-740027BB628e

DocuSJgn Envelope ID: 32E387FF.28DM531-BF46'16e5BE99FElD

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Mlaking ® Services

'  : Exhibit B-1, Price and Payment Schedule

Inter-rater Reliability Testing
(Assessment tools)

June 30.2020 $29,000

Field test/tool flnetlzation

(Assessment tools) -
June-30. 2020 $21,100

Project management June 30, 2020 $12,000

Total $402,700

Stale Fiscal Year 2021:
Governor and Executive

Council Approval through June
30.2021

Deliverable Description Deliverable Due Date Flrrn Fixed Price

Inter-rater reliability testing.
(Family Service tools)

August 31. 2020 $29,000

Field test/tool fmalization
(Family Service tools) .

October 31. 2020 $21,100

Training curriculum
developmenl

Novemtjcr 30. 2020 $66,400

Conducting training (train-the-
trainer model)

June 30. 2021 $60,600 .

Supervisor training/coaching
session

June 30,2021 $11;125

Project management June 30. 2021 $12,000

SDM certification June 30. 2021 $50,000

Total $260,226

NCCO Children'® Research Center (CRC) E*hiwi B-1
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SPFCtAl PROVISIONS

Conlractofi Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ell funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used or^ly as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
slate laws, regulatiorts, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of petormlnatlon: Eligibility delerminalions shall bo made on forms provided by
the Oeparlmeni for that purpose end shall be made and remade at such times as ore prescribed by "
the Department,

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Oepartment, the Contractor
shall maintain a'data We on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include ell
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Oepartment requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ell forms and documentation
regarding eligibility delefmlnallons that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as.
individuats declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Conl'reclor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out

■ an application form and that each applicant or le-applicant shail be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that H is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a paynient. gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
delermined'thal payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any otfrcials. officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Rotroactlvo Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties .
hereto, that no payments wiil be made heteunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effocliye Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies (or services or (except as otherwise provided by the.
federal regulations) prior to s determination that the. individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Conlrect. nothing
. herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Oepartment to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the emounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall deiermine that (he Cor^troctor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such,costs or In excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Departrncnt may elect to:* , . .

7.1. Renegotiate ih© .rales for payment herounder. in whicfi event new rates shall beestaWished:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementIr-

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Specldl ProvlUons
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7.3. Demand repayment oj the excess payment by the Contrector in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constilute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds paid by ihe Department to Ihe Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by Ihe Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Malnle'nanco of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specihad above. Ihe Conlractor
covonants and egreeo to maintain (he following records durioQ Ihe Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and olher expenses incurred by the Conlractor in the performarwo of the Contract, ar>d all
income received or collected by the Contractor during (he Contract Period, said records to be ■
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufTiclonlty end.
properly reflect all such costs and expenses. end which ere acceplable lo the Department, and
to include, without limilalton. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitibns for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statisticdl Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ell records of applicatlonend
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provis.ion of services and aillnvoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor-shall retain medical records on each patianiyreclpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit lo the Department within 60 days after (he close of the
agency flscal year. It is recommended that the repprt be prepared.in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organiiations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain 10 ftnancial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, exaniination. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limiialion of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any sta.te
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under (he
Contract lo which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confldentlailty of Records: At) information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in conriection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confldenliai end shall not
be disclosed by the Conlractor. provided however, that pursuant lo state laws and the regulations of
(he Department regarding (he use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made lo
public officials requiring such information in connection with (heir official dulies and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractors responsibilities with
respect to purchased seAiices hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipierit^
ettomey or guardian.

ExnioliC-Special Provisions Comrectorinruaisl
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Nolwilhslendinp anything to the conirery contained herein the covenants and condilions contained in
the Paragraph shell survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statisticali'The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
limes If requested by the Department.
11,1. Interim Financlai Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other Information as'shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hercunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

112. Final Report: A finol raport shall be submiUed wiihin thirty (30) days efter the end of the term
Of Ihb Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Oepartrncnt and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals end objectives stated in theProposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Complotlon of Services; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of unit# provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract end all the obllgalions pf the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall Icrminale. provided however, that If. upon review oflhe •
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hercunder-the Department shall reiain the right, at its discrelbn. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other rnateriais prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of (he Contract shall include thefollowing
statement: ^ ^ »
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State

ol New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in port
•by the Stale ol New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as.were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Senrices.

14. Prior'Approval and Copyright Ownership: Atl materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not timried to. brochures', resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any maierials produced under the conlraclwilhput
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Cdmplianco with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders arid regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal aulhorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the

•  operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said senrices.
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and vvill at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contreclor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facitities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall l>e in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulalions.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of 5500.000 or more. II the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has «

EKhM C - Sped*! Pfovlilons Cof>if«cio« lnlU#ii,
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more employees, it will mainlain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certifjcation Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient Viill provide an
EEOP Certlficalion Form to the OCR certifying i Is no\ required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to' submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP CeJlrTicat'on Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/8bout/ocr/pdfs/cerl.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, .Improving Access to
Services for persons v/ith Limited English Proroency, end resultir>g agency guidance, natiortalorlgln
discrimination includei discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1368 and Title V) of. the Ch/U
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must taVe reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to lls programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceedthe Simplified Acquis'nion Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WhiSTLEBLOV^/ER RiGHTS ANO REOUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHisiLEeLOWER Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worhing on (his contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
end remedies In the pilot program on Coritractor employee whistleblower protections established at'
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Aulhorizalion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.,

(b) The Contractor shall inform lls employees in wriiing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in'secHon
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of ihis clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shell retain the responsibility and accountability for the (unclion(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shai) evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functionfs). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the detogstion or imposing sanctions if
the sutxontraclor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same corilractuai
conditions as the Contractor and (he Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates e function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegatir>g
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subconlraclor thai specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities and how sanclions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performence is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provtsion^
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor fdenlines deficiencies or areas for improvement are identifted, the Contractor shad
take corrective action.

20. Contract Doflnitlons:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the'Oepartment
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordertce with cost end occounting principles established
In accordance with stale and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT.'NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean tha document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided

' under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department and spedHed
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.'5. FEOERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean -
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.'

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Furxfs provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

CxhibI] C - Spedftl Ptovlilora Conlraclor Initials^
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REVtStONSTO standard CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding, any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of
the State hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in
NVhole or In part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation ,
or availability of funds. Including any subsequent changes lo the appropriation or
availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action
that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope
of Services. In whole or in part. In no event shalllhe State be liable for any payments
hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event.of a reduction. ;
termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have
the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The State '. ;
shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement '
imrhediately upon giving the Contractor notice.of such reduction, termination or i
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source .i
or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions.
Account Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. •

12. Section 1Q. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 Either party may unilaterally terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason,
thirty (30) days after giving the other party-written notice that the party is
exercising its option to termlnale the Agreement, or,at a later date specified in the :
notice. However, in no instance shall such a termination be effective prior to the i
return or destruction of all Confidential Data provided to the Contractor by Ihe
Department or derived from the Confidential Data obtained under the terms of this •
Agreement. The Contractor agrees that it has the duty to protect and maintain i
the privacy and security of Confidential Data and that duty must continue In full '
force and effect until such Coriridenilal Data is returned and/or destroyed and
access to the CCWiS/SACWiS and/or extracted data is terminated. For any
Confidential Data or derivative data that destruction is not feasible for. the privacy ;,I
and security requirements of this Agreement must survive th.e termination or ;
expiration of this Agreement. l

10.2 If the Department determines that there was or may have been an Incident or ;
Breach of the Confidential Data or Individually Identifiable derivative data or ■■
Information by the User, its End Users, subcontractors and/or agents that violates i,
the terms of this Agreement, DHHS may. In its sole discretion, immediately and • • 1
unilaterally terminate this Agreement upon notice to the Contractor, and ^
Immediately revoke all access lothe CCWIS/SACWIS and/or extracted data. The •
Contractor agrees lo cease using and return and/or destroy all Confidential Data I
and derivatives therefrom in Its possession, End Users' subcontractors'/agents' 1
possession, immediately upon notice of termination for ar> Incident or Breach. User •
agrees that it has the duty to protect and maintain the privacy and security of
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Confidential Data and that duty must continue in full force and.effect until such data
is returned and/or destroyed. For any such data that return/destruction Is not
feasible, the privacy and security requirements of this Agreement shall survive the
termination.

10.3 In the event of an early termination for any reason, the Contrartor shall, within
fifteen (15) days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Slate a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to the
return and/or destruction of Confidential data provided to the Contractor by the
Department or derived from the Conftdenlial Data oblained under the terms of this
Agreement.

10.4 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide
detailed InformsDon to support the Transitior) Plan including, but not limited to, any
Information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

2. Revisions to Standard Exhlblts

7 1 Fvhibit C Soecial Provisions

2.1.1 Paragraph 1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws, is deleted In Its
entirety.

2.1.2 Paragraph 2. Time and Manner of Determination, is deleted in its entirely.
2.1.3 Paragraph 3. Documentation, is deleted in its entirety.
2.1.4 Paragraph 4, Fair Hearings, is deleted in its entirely.
2.1.5 Paragraph 6, Retroactive- Payments, is deleted in its-entirety.
2.1.6 Paragraph 7. Conditions of Purchase, and its subparagraphs, are deleted in

their entirety.

2.1.7 Paragraph 8. Mainlenance of Records: Subparagraph 8.1, Fiscal Records, is
replaced as follows:

8 1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencingand renecling all costs and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in
the performance of the Conlfact.. and all incorrie received or collected by
the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained
in accordance with accounting procedures and practices wtiich
sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and- to
include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase r^uisitions and orders, vouchers,
and requisitions for malerials.

Subparagraphs B.2 and 8.3 of Paragraph 6 are deleted.in their entirety.
2.1.8 Paragraph 15, Operation of Facilities, is deleted in its entirety.
2.1.9 Paragraph 17. Limited English Proficiency, ts deleted in its entirety.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-PREg WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlir«d in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), end further agrees to have the Ccnirector's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS,

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 51S1-S160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 <Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. SybliUeD:41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees'fand by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior, to award, that they will maintain s drug-froe workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspensio/) or debarment. Contractors using this form should
ser>d it to: '

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in Ihc workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violaltons

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

.given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in (he stalcment required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and.
V4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five caler>dar days aller such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under,
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExMoii 0 -CenilcaUon resaroing Drug Free Vendor Inhleb
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
.  IdenlificBtion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of (he foUowing actions, within 30 calondar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action egeinsl such en employee, up to and including

termination, consistent wilh the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such.employee to padidpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabililation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making o good feilh effort to continue to maintain o drug^free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sit6(s} for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are vvorkpla'ces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name;

fafcig.
am

Tille: ceo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101*121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have (he Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OR AGRICULTURE * CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide IV«A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under THIo IV.D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community, Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

t

The undersigned cerlifies, to the best of his or her knowtedge and belief, (hat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by b> on behalf of the undersigned, to
•  eny person for influencing or attempting to infbence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In-
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-conlf"8ctcr).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to inftuence an.officer or employee of eny agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub*granteo or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that (he language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at ailiiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered inlo. Submission of (his certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less, than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Dale

ceo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By fligning and submitlirtg this proposal (contract), the prospecttvo primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certtficaiion required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. 11 necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerllfication. The certificalion or explanation.will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whelhor to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospoclive primary
participant to furr>ish e certificalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certificalion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant KrK>wingly rendered an erroneous certificalion. in addition to other remedies,
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective prirnery participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whorn this proposal (contract) is submitted if el any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certiricalion was erroneous when subrnltted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred,' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.* 'tower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant.' 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,* 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have (he meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered trdnsaclion be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
Iransaclicn with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless euthorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this propose! that II will Include Ihe
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarmcnt. Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS, without modirication. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in ell solicitations for lower tier covered transaclions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certiftcaiion of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Invotuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certificatiori Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility ol its principals. Each"
participant may. but is not required to. check Ihe Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contair>ed in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by (his clause. The knowledge and

EtfilDitF-CenincattonRogtrnlngOtbarmeru. Su)p«fulor) Vcnfie/inlil
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Information of a participant la not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of txjsiness dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is.
suspended, debarred, ineligible, orvolunlerily excluded from participation In this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. -The prospective prlmery porticlpanl certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief, thet it end its
principals;
11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal deportment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a ciwi judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaclion; violalion of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental enlily
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (()(b)
of this certification; end

11.4. have not within e threo-year period preceding this opplicalion/proposal had one or more public
■  transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause'or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the stetements in this
certification, such'prospeclive participant sftati attach an explanation to this proposal (conlract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier parlicipani, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that il and Its principals:.
13.1. are not presentlydebarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from' participation in Ihis Iransaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to.certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract);

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Includo this clause entitled *Cerlificalion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions end In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name;

Date iWame:

Title:
ceo
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CERTiRCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section'1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
repfesentalive as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certincation:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischmination requirements, which may include:

■ the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this slalule from discrtminaling, either in employment practices or in •
the delivery of services or benents, on the basis of race, cotor, religion, rietional origin, end sax. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

■ the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights.obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Emptoymenl Opportunity Plan requirements;

-theCivH Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis ot race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabiiilallon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment ar>d the delivery of
services or benefits, in eny program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and local
government services, public accommodalions, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). vrhtch prohibits
discrimination on the basts of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal finar^ctal assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - 0 JJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S.' Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlmlnalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Vl/histieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistteblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connoclion with federal grants and contracts.

The certificale sol out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or.
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination afler a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion. natior>al origin, or sex
against a recipleni of funds, the recipient win forward a copy of the finding to the Office for CM! Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the OeparVnent of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenliried in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cemTicalion;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with (he provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Dale F57?^
Tilla: ceo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental T(^acco Smoke, also known as Ihe Pfo-ChiWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if Ihe services are funded by Federal programs elther
directly or through Stale or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not eppty to chBdren's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald furvls, end portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treetment. Failure
to comply with the provisions ol tho low may resuti in Ihe Imposition of o civil rhonetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor'a
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicaWo provislor^s of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name;

6? - iO -1 ̂
Dale

Title:
ceo-
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

PUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor Idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and 8ger>ts of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

0  Deflnittona.
a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.

Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set* shall hiave the same meaning as the term'"designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e.. 'Data AQoredation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Qoerations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Informailcn Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TItleXlll. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Sectioni 64.501(9).

•j. 'Pfivacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department qf Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected heallj^
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or fecclyed^
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. 'Reoulfed bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103. ,

m. 'Secretarv'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Secufitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for.the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at"45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadabie, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. ■

p. Other Oeftnitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary 16 provide the services outlined under

, Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all"
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI if) any manner that would ccnstilute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
lit. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will t>e held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associale. in accordance with Ihe HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that ii Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Enliiy has an opportunity to object to the disclosuri'
io seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busl^

3/2014 exriiMi I vendor imu
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI unlil Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by.additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate '
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qbiloatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificalion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or'viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessmerit within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the .Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate, shall .require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to (he same
restrictions and conditions on (he use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to relurn or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity

. shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ass^elfl^e
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivingji
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement end indemnificatjon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
'protected health information,

f. Within five (5) business days of receipl.of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreemehls, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determlrie
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. ■ Within ten (10) business days of receiving o written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall documeni such disclosures of PHI and informaUon related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
16.4.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Enlity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall withln two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Enlity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as scon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall hot retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has t>een otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of thi
Agreement, to such PHI and limit furtheruses and disclosures of such PHI to Iho^o
purposes that make the return or destruction infeaslble, for so long as Businet
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Erility that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllaatlona of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
fVotice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Sectwn 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions <P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a .breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein.as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity

' determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall'report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. ̂ Definitions and ReQuiatorv References. Al! terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Prlvacyand
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknovrledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be res
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Seofeoation. If any term or condition of .this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
personfs) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affecl other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabla.-

f. Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) i, the
defense and indemniftcation provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and cor>dl!ion$ (P*37}, shall survive the lerrhinatior) of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

rtment of Health end Humen Services

tate

atur of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Apthorlzed Representative

Date

MCC-T)
Name of Ute vendor

fnatuK of Aulho/fzed Representative

Narhe of Authorized Representative

CEO ^
Titia of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAt. FUNDING ACCOUNTAeiLiTV AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabilily and Transparency Act (FFATA} requires prime owardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data-related to executive compensation and associated rir$t>tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. K the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincations result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Inforrhation). the
Department of Health or»d Human Services (OHHS) must report the lollowing in/ormalton lor any
subaward or contrgct award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA p;ogram number for granls
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Localion of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
rovenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipienls must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is n\ade.
The Vendor Idenllfied In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Conlradof's represenlalive, as kfentifiedln Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certirication: .
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed Information as oullined above to the NH Department
of Heallh and Human Services end to corrtply wilh all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Ad.

Vendor Name

-t

Dale
ills: C€0
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FORMA

As (he Vendor.identined In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that (he responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity Is:

1. In your business or organization's preceding completed Tiscat year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your ennual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grdnts. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, aubgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to U2 above is NO, stop here

if the answer to P2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports Hied under, section l3<a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C,70m(a), 7^(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES, slop here

If the enswer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization aro as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amouni:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Exhibit J - CenitlceUon Regarding the Federal Furtdlng
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected end have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, comprornise. unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized - access, or any similar term referring to-
situations where -persons other than, authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. Wilh regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other siich as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits'and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Informallon.

Confidential Information also includes any and ail Information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by

• state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited" to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal-Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FT)). Social Security Numt>ers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User"- means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incidenr means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of-data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include Ihe loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, end misrouting of physical-or electronic
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mail, alt of vyhlch may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

T. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or-segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, •
PHI or conndenilal DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, bipmetric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually .Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts t60 and t64. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services:

10. 'Protected Health information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Pfotecled Health Information" in the HlPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is

. developed or .endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as-reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PMI in any manner thai would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.'

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent'or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
addilional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivalive there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

I. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and (hat said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure (ransmlssiori via.th'e internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Dala If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Dala.

• 6. Ground Mail Service. End User may onty transmit Confidenlial Dala via cerfr/yerf ground
, mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and" PDA. If End User is employing portable .devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8.- Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remolety tfansmlltir>g via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual-private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile dev}ce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Prot6cor(SFTP), also known as.Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the 'Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting. Confidential Data will
be ooded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Vt^reiess Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data arxl any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will, have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative' in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data cotlecied In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementalion of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its EfKf
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.'

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAI\^PfHITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-vlrol, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

-8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conrtdenlial Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will.maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for.any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as-a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
(n accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltlzalion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sahltization, Nallohal Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time-of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will -include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention* requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

iV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees "to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will mainlain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, ar^d/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will mainlain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collecl. transmit, or store Department conWenllal Information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department conndential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notirication requirements.

7. The Contractor wilt work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system access and aulhorizalion policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements vsrtll be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Us request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of Ihe survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time, frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between Ihe Department and (he Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of ihe United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

f-
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the breach, inctuding but not limited to;, credit monitoring services, mailing costs.and
costs .associated with website and telephone cal.i center services necessary- due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with ail appHcable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confldenlial Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identinable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain-approprlate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conridentiality of the Corifidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and,
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the.State of New Hampshire,.Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsi/AAww.nh.gov/doitA'endor/lndex.hlm
for-the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New

• Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conndentlal Data obtained under this
'  Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to

perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Conndeniial Information that Is furnished by OHHS
ur^der this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information el ad times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conndentlal Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and .being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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.  e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conftdential Information received under - this Contract and Individually
idenliOabie data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an'area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized perscr>s
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card t^eys.
blometrlc Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all coses,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances .Confidential Data must t:>e maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumslonces involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t^e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credenilals used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a.third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. .DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time (he Confidential Data
Is disposed of in'accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Coo.tractof must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling end Breach Notification
procedures-and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how. the Contractor will;

1. idenllfy Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. .DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer.

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Heten Dr., Concord. NH 03301
Fox: 603-271.1516 TOD Access: l.«00-735-2964

www.rdi.gov/doit

DenU Coutei

Commhsioner

June 25:2019

Jeffrey A. Meyer?, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human SeiS'ices
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pteasani Street

Concord, NH 0330!

Dear Comiiiissioner Meyers:

this lencr represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's'request to enter into a sole source contract with the National Council on
Crime and Delinquency (NCCD) Children's Research' Center (CRC) as described below and referenced
as DolT No. 2019-098.

This is a request to enter Into an agreement; to provide funding to continue the New
Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SDM® Management Report that outlines
baseline. SDM®- fidelity indicators, which' are a measure of adherence to the
Implementation guidelines for SDM®. The Contractor and the Department will continue
to ■ work-collaboratively to update, customize, and implement the SDM® intake
assessment, investigation assessment, and ongoing assessments to assist the Department
in enhancing 'i\s child welfare system through the use of evidence-based tools.

The amount of the contract is not to e.^ceed $6'52,925.00, and shall become effective July
1,2019 or upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany th
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for

DG/kaf
DolT «2019-098

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

e Department of Health and Human Services'
approval.

Sincerely,

Dcnis Goulet

"fnnovoiive TechnolOQ'^i Today for New Hompihire's Tomorrow"


